

Version 9.5

Corporate Headquarters:

Rimage Corporation 201 General Mills Blvd, Golden Valley, MN 55426, USA 800-553-8312 (North America) Service: +1 952-683-7785 (Mexico/Latin America) Fax: +1 952-944-6956

European Headquarters:

Rimage Europe GmbH Werner-von-Braun Str. 9 63303 Dreieich-Offenthal Germany Tel: +49 6074-8521-14 Fax: +49 6074-8521-100

Asia/Pacific Headquarters:

Rimage Corporation Taiwan Branch (USA) 7F., No. 85, Zhouzi St. Neihu Dist., Taipei 114682, Taiwan Tel: +886-2-27260100

Rimage Japan Co., Ltd. 9F Toshinkuramae Bldg, 3-2-2 Kuramae, Taito-ku, Tokyo, 111-0051 Japan Tel: +81-3-6452-8788

Rimage Information Technology (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. Unit E2,7 Floor, Sino-Ocean Tower 2, No. 618 East Yan'an Road, Huangpu District, Shanghai, 200025, China Tel: +86-21-58878905

Rimage Corporation reserves the right to make improvements to the equipment and software described in this document at any time without any prior notice. Rimage Corporation reserves the right to revise this publication and to make changes from time to time in the content hereof without obligation of Rimage Corporation to notify any person or organization of such revisions or changes.

This document may contain links to web sites that were current at the time of publication but may have moved or become inactive since. This document may contain links to sites on the Internet that are owned and operated by third parties. Rimage Corporation is not responsible for the content of any such third–party site.

©2022 Rimage Corporation. All Rights Reserved.

Producer[™], Professional[™] and Everest[™] are trademarks of the Rimage Corporation.

All other trademarks and registered trademarks are the property of their respective owners. The most

recent version of this document can be found at <u>https://support.rimage.com</u>.

Table of Contents

	1
About the Rimage System Manager (RSM)	1
TECHNICAL SUPPORT	
Support Contact Information	
Learn More Online	
Optical Disc Recording Software Disclaimer	
RIMAGE SYSTEM MANAGER OVERVIEW	
GETTINGSTARTED	3
Basic Concepts	
STARTING THE RSM PROGRAM	
THE RSM TRAY MENU (POPUP)	5
DISPLAY RIMAGE SYSTEM MANAGER	5
Refresh	
DISPLAY ALERTS VIEWER	
DISPLAY LOGS VIEWER	
Applications	
RIMAGE SYSTEM CONNECTIONS	
RIMAGE SYSTEM MANAGER PREFERENCES	
Нгір	
Авоит	
THE RSM MAIN SCREEN	
Current Sustem Menu	6
	1(
Draduction Server Settings	1(
General	1(
Recording	1
Printing	
Reading	14
Caching	16
Verify	16
Media	1
Diagnostics (Advanced)	1
Autoloaders	19
Barcode	19
Email	19
Pertirack (Performance Track)	20
imaging server settings	2
Netpub/WatchFolder Settings	22
In the common section (Image & Network Publisher Settings)	22

Network Publisher Settings	23
Image Watch Folder Settings	23
Job Counts	23
Messaging Server Settings	24
Bridge Server Settings	24
RIMAGE SERVER DETAILS	25
Messaging Server Details	25
Layout	26
Help	26
Авоит	26
RFS INFORMATION	26
RIMAGE SYSTEMS	26
Media (Current System)	28
Messages	30
System (Current System)	31
JOBS STATUS	31
Right Click Menu	32
SETTING UP PREFERENCES	34
GENERAL	34
Alerts	35
Messages	36
Advanced	37
MAKING CONNECTIONS (ADVANCED) JOB DETAILS (ADVANCED)	39 41
Status	41
STAGE	41
Progress	42
COPIES COMPLETED	42
DEVICE STATUS	42
DEVICE	42
Status	42
Progress	43
Speed	43
Data Access	43
Message	43
Order XML	43
MESSAGING SERVER DETAILS (ADVANCED)	44
CONNECTIONS	44
SUBSCRIBERS	44
LISTENERS	45
QUEUES	45
TYPES OF EMS MESSAGES	45
VIEW EXAMPLES	46
PRODUCTION MODES (ADVANCED)	47
PRODUCTION SERVER MODES	Δ7

VERIFY ONLY MODE	48
Scenario:	48
JOB STREAMING MODE	49
Scenario	49
Prepare Job Streaming Labels	49
Label Location Method	50
Order of the Search Labeling Method	50
Bulk Read Mode	52
Scenario	52
AUTOMATIC BULK READ MODE	53
Scenario	53
Automatic Bulk Read Options	53
Base Folder for Images	53
Use Barcode as Image Folder Name	53
Use Volume ID (or UPC/EAN) as Image Folder Name	54
Image Type for Audio Tracks	54
Use ISRC as Filename for Audio Tracks	54
Put Failures in Reject Bin	54
Create Full Disc Inlage Files	5454 54
RESTORE SDANNED SET MODE	⁵⁴ 5
Scenario	55
Restore Snanned Set Ontions	55
Base Folder for Images	55
	50
HOW DO I PAUSE A SYSTEM?	56
HOW DO I START A SYSTEM?	56
HOW DO I PAUSE AN IMAGING SERVER?	56
HOW DO I START AN IMAGING SERVER?	56
HOW DO I PAUSE A NETPUB/WATCH SERVER?	56
HOW DO I START A NETPUB/WATCH SERVER?	56
HOW DO I CANCEL A JOB?	57
HOW DO I CLEAR ALL OF THE JOBS THAT ARE DONE OUT OF THE LIST?	57
HOW DO I CHANGE BIN SETTINGS?	57
How Do I View A Log File?	57
HOW DO I HAVE RSM START WHEN I LOG INTO WINDOWS (ALWAYS RUNNING)?	57
HOW DO I UPDATE FIRMWARE FOR A RECORDER, PRINTER, OR AUTOLOADER?	57
How Do I Enable a Recorder, Printer or Autoloader That's Been Disabled?	58
How Do I Respond To An Alert?	58
HOW DO I DISPLAY A SESSION LOG FOR A RIMAGE SERVER?	58
HOW DO I GET RSM TO STOP DISPLAYING POPUP MESSAGES ON THE TRAY?	58
How Do I Get Rid of the Notification Sounds?	58
HOW DO I MAKE THE RIMAGE SYSTEM MANGER ICON STAY ON THE SCREEN?	60
How Do I Ignore Some Warning Conditions I Don't Care About?	61
How Do I Find Rimage Instructional Videos?	61

Introduction

This manual provides the information that will help use Rimage System Manager v9.2 to monitor and configure Rimage Systems on your network.

For information, specific to the Rimage hardware, refer to the user guides found at <u>https://support.rimage.com</u>.

Important! Your Rimage System Manager screens may not look exactly like the examples pictured in this user guide, but all Rimage Systems have similar basic functionality. Rimage System Manager screens change based on the model of the Rimage System being monitored.

About the Rimage System Manager (RSM)

RSM is part of the Rimage Software Suite of products. It is installed on all Rimage Systems, but you may also install it on user workstations so that the systems can be controlled remotely as long as they are on the same network. The RSM program runs as a Windows desktop application that hosts in the "Windows tray¹" so that it can be monitoring your systems with or without having a user interface running on your desktop.

Regardless of whether or not the user interface is showing on the screen, or minimized to the tray, the RSM will monitor the connected systems for operational alerts, current job status, and connection status. A small popup window will appear on the bottom right corner of your monitor whenever system attention is needed. You can configure what is reported to you in the Preferences screen that is described later in this manual. You can also configure the RSM to start automatically when you log into Windows so that it is always on.

Technical Support

Rimage offers a variety of service and support options for the EDS, Producer 8100N and 8200N, and Professional 5400N and 5410N including Next Business Day On–site Agreements, Exchange Services, and Software Subscriptions and Support. Please contact your Rimage Value Added Reseller or Rimage for additional information and pricing.

For information, specific to the Professional or Producer systems or the Everest 600 printer, refer to the Support Home Page found at <u>https://www.rimage.com/support</u>

Technical Specifications for this product can be found at <u>https://www.rimage.com/support</u>. From the **Support** page select: **Series Name > Product > User Manuals** tab.

Support Contact Information

US, Canada, Latin America	
Rimage Corporation 201 General Mills Blvd, Golden Valley, MN 55426 USA Attn: Rimage Services	Email: <u>support@rimage.com</u> Telephone: North America: 800-553-8312 Mexico/Latin America: 952-944-8144

¹ The system tray is a section located typically at the right end of the taskbar. Icons that are often installed in the system tray include the volume control for sound, network connections, scanner software, keyboard and mouse controls, and a clock. Many other programs can be installed there, for example Rimage System Manager.

Europe	
Rimage Europe GmbH Werner-von-Braun Str. 9 63303 Dreieich-Offenthal Germany	Email: <u>support@rimage.de</u> Telephone: +49 6074-8521-14 Fax: +49 6074-8521-100
Asia/Pacific	
Rimage Japan Co., Ltd. 2F., WIND Bldg. 7-4-8 Roppongi Minato-ku, Tokyo 106-0032 JAPAN	Email: apsupport@rimage.co.jp Telephone: +81-3-5771-7181
Contact Rimage Services	
Website: <u>www.rimage.com</u> Help Center: <u>https://www.support.rimage.com</u>	
 When you contact Rimage Services, please provide: System serial number and software version Functional and technical description of the problem 	Copy this information from your Rimage product for future reference. Note: Make sure you update the Serial Number here anytime you receive a replacement system.
Exact error message received	Serial Number:
	Product Name:
	Date of Purchase:

Learn More Online

At www.rimage.com/support, you can experience Rimage's world–class Support and Services.

From the Support home page:

- 1 Select your product series.
- 2 Select your product.
- 3 Learn more on the product page.

From your product page you can access:

- Information about the latest software and firmware updates
- Product specifications
- The latest documents
- Current firmware and driver downloads

Optical Disc Recording Software Disclaimer

This Product, Software, or Documentation may be designed to assist you in reproducing material in which you own the copyright or have obtained permission to copy from the copyright owner. Unless you own the copyright or have permission to copy from the copyright owner, you may be violating copyright law and be subject to payment of damages and other remedies. If you are uncertain about your rights, you should contact your legal advisor. If you are neither in possession of the copyright nor have authorization from the owner of the copyright, unauthorized copying of copyrighted material on an optical disc or any other media violates national and international legislation and can result in severe penalties.

Rimage System Manager Overview

The Rimage System Manager (RSM) monitors and configures Rimage Systems. Using RSM you can do all of the basic functionality needed to:

- Set up the types of media you use in each of the bins.
- View and set the server settings on each of the systems.
- View each Rimage Systems operational status.
- View the status of each of the components. For example, Autoloader, Printer, and Recorders of each connected system.
- Pause or Resume Rimage Systems.
- View job status for jobs running on any of the connected systems.
- Cancel any running jobs if requested.
- View and respond to system alerts and operational errors.
- View the component servers, and information about the servers, for each connected system.
- View and search the log files created by various Rimage components.

Getting Started

For details on loading and powering on the system, refer to the User Guides that shipped with your Rimage Systems. For most models of Rimage Systems there is a power on switch on the back and front of the unit. The systems have to be on and operation for Rimage System Manager to find and interact with them.

Basic Concepts

- 1. RSM indicates the condition of the components of the Rimage System by displaying a colored dot next to items of interest (bins, printers, recorders, autoloaders, etc.):
 - A green dot <a> means that everything is working properly.
 - A yellow dot means that there is something that needs attention. This may or may not be a problem. For example, you may be getting low on discs in a bin, but the bin is not quite empty, or there is an alert pending, or a server is offline, or the printer ribbon is almost finished.
 - A red dot means that there is something that is keeping your system from continuing to operate. The specific problem will be indicated by a message in the Messages window or a pop up tool tip when you hover your mouse cursor over the red dot. Out of discs or printer ribbon would cause this.
- 2. A Rimage System's status is represented by similar graphics indicating its state:



Tells you that a Rimage System is online and running normally.

Tells you that a Rimage System is online, but has alerts or warning pending.



Tells you that a Rimage System is offline.

- 3. There is often a right mouse click menu with additional operations. For example, in the Systems window you can right click on a system and elect to pause, change settings, or just see more information about the system. Similarly, in the Jobs window you can right click on a job to see other operations that are available.
- 4. RSM is a "tray" application so the program icon will be found on the Windows tray. You can click on the

icon to display a menu of program options (described later in this document). Note: The task bar icon also has a dot to indicate the overall condition of all of the systems currently connected.

- 5. You can set up the list of Rimage Systems you want to monitor in the 'Rimage Systems Connections' screen. By default, RSM will automatically display all of the Rimage Systems that are currently running on your network. Check the systems you want to watch.
- 6. RSM is intended to run whenever you are logged in and want to monitor Rimage Systems. This allows you to do other work on your computer and know that you will be alerted if something needs your attention. You can open the main application window, but when you close it the program will minimize itself back onto the tray, it will keep monitoring your systems in the background. If necessary, there is a menu entry to exit the program.

Starting the RSM Program

RSM can be started using one of three methods:

- 1. By default, the RSM does not run automatically when you log on, but you can set this up in the Preferences screen. This is a convenient way to ensure that you are always monitoring your systems.
- 2. You can start RSM from the program icon on your Windows desktop



3. You can start RSM from the RSM toolbar icon in QuickDisc. When you start RSM from QuickDisc RSM will automatically make sure it's connected to the system QuickDisc is currently using and it will pop up the main screen with that system selected.

The RSM Tray Menu (Popup)

You can click on the icon



to display a menu of program options (described later in this document).



Display Rimage System Manager

If the main screen has been minimized this will pop it up. It will also bring the screen to the foreground if it's fallen behind other windows on the desktop.

Refresh

This item performs a refresh of the programs components. This is sometimes useful if a lot of things are happening on the network or you suspect that a server condition may not be reflected on the screen. For example, if you turn on a system and you don't see it come onto the screen after it initializes, you can press Refresh to see if it is discovered. This operation will refresh all of the elements of the program including:

- Checking all connections to see if there are any that need to be reconnected.
- Refreshing all components in the main screen.
- Checking for any alerts of supply issues in case a message has been missed from the servers.
- Checking all of the currently running jobs to make sure their status is up to date.
- Checking the online status of the servers running on the Rimage Systems.

Display Alerts Viewer

If there are any alerts to view this item will pop up the Alerts Viewer so you can view and address them. When there are no alerts pending you will get a message that says that.

Rimage System Alert		
Connection: RIMAGESYSTEM1 •	K ◀ 1 of 1 ► N	
From: RIMAGESYSTEM1_PS01		\otimes
Received: 8/2/2016 9:18:47 AM		_
Subject: AUTOLOADER ERROR!		
Message:		ID: 160000
Dut of blank discs. Remove all discs from th operation.	e bin(s), reload the input bin(s), and r	retry the
	lanore	Betry

Display Logs Viewer

This item will help you view log files that are saved by various components and applications on Rimage Systems. You can select a specific host to see all of the logs files that are in the Rimage System Folder for that connection. You can also view the Rimage System Manager log files on either the selected host or the local system where RSM is running.

Once a file is opened you can scroll through the file, search for text in the file, or reload the file periodically if you suspect something may have been added. For searching wildcards like "*" and "?" are supported in addition to regular expressions² for advanced users.

EN.			
E Logs	/iewer: TOM-CORSAIR_SystemManager.log		_ 🗆 ×
	- CAPingenelloge/TOM-COPSNR SintereManager Inc	RIMAGESYSTEM1	
0	5 E 🗸 C.himagelugsh.OM-COhavin_systeminanagel.log		
Line #	l og line		
1	Long Carlo (2016 09:01:54 MajoWindow)NEO 1 -		
2	[05/04/2016 08:01:54 WainWeidewint 0] -		
3	[09/04/2016 08:01:54 MainWindowNING]		
4	109/04/2016 08:01:54 MainWindown 05 1 Bimane System Manager is starting		
5	109/04/2016 08/01/54 MainWindown INFO 1		
6	109/04/2016 08:01:54 MainWindowINEQ 1 version 9.2.56.0 hosting CL8v4.0.30319		
7	109/04/2016 08:01:54 ConnectionManager INFO 1 - Connection Manager started at 8:01:54 AM		
8	109/04/2016 08:01:54 ConnectionManager INFO 1 - Application Working Directory: E\RimageSourceCode\main\Debug		
9	(09/04/2016 08:01:54 ServerManagerDEBUG) - Start Discovery Listening		
10	[09/04/2016 08:01:55 ServerManagerDEBUG] - System discovered: RIMAGESYSTEM1		
11	[09/04/2016 08:01:55 ServerManagerDEBUG] - AddControlCenter():cCenter=RIMAGESYSTEM1		
12	[09/04/2016 08:01:55 RimageServer DEBUG] - Config Property being set for ServerId:RIMAGESYSTEM1_PS01 Loader Count:0		
13	[09/04/2016 08:01:55 ServerManagerDEBUG] - AddServerToList(): ServerType:PS ServerId=RIMAGESYSTEM1_PS01		
14	[09/04/2016 08:01:55 ServerManagerDEBUG] - AddServerToList(): ServerType:IS ServerId=(empty)		
15	[09/04/2016 08:01:55 ServerManager DEBUG] - CheckForConnectionsToMake() starting		
16	[09/04/2016 08:01:55 ServerManagerDEBUG] - CONLOOP: found cc=RIMAGESYSTEM1 in list		
17	[09/04/2016 08:01:55 ServerManagerDEBUG] - CONLOOP: cc=RIMAGESYSTEM1 conId=RIMAGESYSTEM1:4664		
18	[09/04/2016 08:01:55 ServerManagerDEBUG] - CheckForConnectionsToMake() MessageServerConnection object NULL for conId=RIMAGESYSTEM1:4664		
19	[09/04/2016 08:01:55 ServerManagerDEBUG] - CONLOOP: RIMAGESYSTEM1 is not connected to an eMS		
20	[09/04/2016 08:01:55 ConnectionManager DEBUG] - DoConnect() calling ConnectToMessagingServer for RIMAGESYSTEM1		
21	[09/04/2016 08:01:55 ConnectionManager DEBUG] - ConnectToMessageServer() con still null attempting to get connection for RIMAGESYSTEM1		
22	[09/04/2016 08:01:55 MessagingServerConnection DEBUG] - MessageServerConnection() connecting to RIMAGESYSTEM1		
23	[09/04/2016 08:01:55 MessagingServerConnection DEBUG] - connect[) attempting to create connection to RIMAGESYSTEM1:4664 with clientID:TOM-CORSAIR_Rimage_RSM		
24	[09/04/2016 08:01:55 MessagingServerConnectionDEBUG] - connect() connected succesfully		
25	[09/04/2016 08:01:55 MessagingServerConnectionDEBUG] - MessageServerConnection() back from connecting to RIMAGESYSTEM1		
26	[09/04/2016 08:01:55 MessagingServerConnectionDEBUG] - GetWatchFolderSettings() *START* calling CallSynchMethod() for RIMAGESYSTEM1		
27	[09/04/2016 08:01:55 MessagingServerConnectionDEBUG] - GetWatchFolderSettings() *DONE* calling CallSynchMethod() for RIMAGESYSTEM1		
28	[09/04/2016 08:01:55 ConnectionManager DEBUG] - ConnectToMessagingServer() adding RIMAGESYSTEM1:4664		
29	[09/04/2016 08:01:55 ServerEventListenerDEBUG] - OnMessage(): ??xml version="1.0"?>		-
4			۰.
Find		Match cou	nt:
		0	
	Word wrap Reset H 4)		
			Close

² Regular expressions for text searching are not documented here. It is a complex subject, but many tutorials are available on the web for anyone wishing to learn how they work.

- Select the Logs button to get a list of logs on the selected host.
- Select the Host list to select a different host.
- Select the Word wrap button if you want to have the text wrap on the screen rather than extending.
- Enter text in the Find box and click the Find button \bigcirc to search for the text.

Applications

You can select, in the Preferences screen, from a list of installed Rimage applications to show on the menu. This is a convenient way to find the Rimage applications that are currently installed on your system.

Rimage System Connections

By default, RSM connects to any systems that it finds as they come online, and removes them if they are taken offline (turned off). This screen allows you to change that behavior by selecting only specific systems to be monitored. There is more information on setting up connections later in this document. For most users, the default will work fine and changes will not be necessary.

Rimage System Manager Preferences

This item presents the Preferences screen where you can view or change many of the settings in the RSM program. See the section Setting Up Preferences later in this document to get more information about configuring your RSM settings.

Help

This item displays this help file.

About

This item displays information about the program version and Rimage copyrights.

The RSM Main Screen

The RSM main screen shows the Rimage Systems that are currently connected, information about a specific system that is selected in the list like bin and printer supply quantities, Messages about any alerts or pending conditions, detailed system information about the selected system, and information about jobs that are currently running. There is also a menu on the top right that make readily available many of the main operations of the program.

📔 Rimage System Manager										_ 🗆 ×
RIMAGESYSTEM1			<u>In Proc</u> 3	<u>ess Cop</u>	ies Done 0	<u>Copies Rejected</u> 2	Discs/Hour 0	<u>Alerts/24 Hours</u> 0	<u>Errors/24 Hours</u> 3	Menu
Rimage Systems	Media					Messages	System			×
						Bins nee	d attention: RIMA	GESYSTEM1		
	Bins: Com	bination	Printer:	Everest 400						
	Bin 1 DVDR Ir	nput Only 26	Ribbon		Color					
RIMAGESYSTEM2	Bin 2 CDR Inp	out Only 0	🔵 Ribbon pan	els	79					
	Bin 3 Output,	/Reject 9	Retransfer s	heets	363					
	Tray* Unused	0	Discs printed		27					
		Confi	gure Bins							
< >		Refr	esh Bins			•				Þ
Jobs (All)				-						
😢 Cancel 🕕 Suspend 🕟 Re	sume 🌐 Copies 🛛	Filter: All	•							
Order Id		Progress	Quantity	Status	5	Stage	Туре	Server		
🕥 🛑 Spanned Order Id: QD	_ADMINISTRATOR_	RIMAGESYSTEM2_0	004 Progress:	67%						
QD_ADMINISTRATOR_RIMAG	ESYSTEM2_0004_1001	100%	1 of	1 Completed	C	Completed	Image Set	RIMAGE	SYSTEM2	
QD_ADMINISTRATOR_RIMAG	ESYSTEM2_0004	67%	2 of	3 In Process	E	Busy	Disc Set CDR	RIMAGE	SYSTEM2	
QD_ADMINISTRATOR_RIMAG	ESYSTEM2_0004_P00	100%	1 of	1 Completed	0	Completed	Record CDR	RIMAGE	SYSTEM2	
QD_ADMINISTRATOR_RIMAG	ESYSTEM2_0004_P00	1009	1 of 1	1 Completed	0	Completed	Record CDR	RIMAGE	SYSTEM2	
QD_ADMINISTRATOR_RIMAG	ESYSTEM2_0004_P00	0%	0 of	I In Process	F	Recording disc	Record CDR	RIMAGE	SYSTEM2	
Spanned Order Id: QD	_TOM_RIMAGESYSI	IEM1_0323 Progre	ss: 39%					DIN 44 CET		
	1323_1001	100%	3 of	Completed		Completed	image Set	RIMAGE	SYSTEM I	
	1222 0002	397	0 of	In Process	E	ousy Deserding disc	Disc Set CDR	RIMAGE		
	1222_PUU2	907	U of	I In Process	1	vecoraing also	Record CDR	RIMAGE		
	1323_P003	227	0.01	1 In Process		Naiting disc	Record CDR	RIMAGE	SVSTEM1	
CD_TOW_NMAGESTSTEWT_C	5525_1004	0.0	001	in nocess	,	narang	NCCOIG CDIX	NIMAGE.	5151EIWIT	Þ

Currently Selected System

The currently selected system is listed at the top left of the screen including an icon that indicates the current running state of the system. This is the system that is being used to show the bins and printer, in the Media window, and the system components in the System window.

You can click on the system name to display a menu of operations.

Current System Menu

Rimage System	Manager	
	Pause	
Rimage Systems	Settings Toggle Production Statistics	
	Select System to View	tion

Pause – Pauses the selected system so that production orders are not picked up. This is useful if you want to take a server offline temporarily.

Stop – Stops the selected system.

Resume – Resumes a system that was previously paused or stopped.

Settings – Displays the settings for the selected system.

Toggle Production Statistics – This option turns on or off the display of production statistics shown on the top middle of the screen.

Select System to View – When you are connected to more than one Rimage System you can select the system from this drop down menu. This is the same as highlighting it in Rimage Systems window.

Main Menu

When you click on the Menu button this menu is displayed:



Refresh

Refreshes the connections, main screen components, jobs list, and updates the screens that are currently showing.

Display Alerts Viewer

This item displays the Alerts Viewer if there are any pending alerts, or shows you a screen indicating that everything is running OK.

For more information, visit https://support.rimage.com

Display Logs Viewer

This item displays the Logs Viewer screen where you can access, view, and search through Rimage software component logs.

Rimage Server Settings

Production Server Settings

Server Settings												_ 🗆 X
Ps Production Server	Perform General	ance Track Recording	Printing	Reading	Caching	Verify	Media	Diagnostics	Autoloaders	Barcode	Email	
ls Imaging Server	Server I RIMAG	d: ESYSTEM1_P	S01									
NetPub/WatchFolder	Descrip	tion:										
Messaging Server	3 Use Ret. Use Operati Norma Serv Attr Kio	Order FIFO Mode ain Operating Verify Only r ng mode: I er mode: er mode: sk Mode: Use Autol Sk Mode: Use Autol C Q Recover C Autoloader R Retry Printer Recov Retry Pay Per I	status inte Mode on node matic Resp NOT use F Orders ecovery: ery: Click Alert (rval (secon Startup onses durir Printer Count Leve	ds) ng startup d (Requires	Vervion	9.2 or lat	er)				
										OK		Cancel

General

General server settings change the operating modes and the server description.

Server Id – The Server ID is created automatically by the Rimage system and cannot be changed. It is displayed to show you the name of the server that you are viewing.

Description – The text that describes the server. The description can be up to 30 characters long. It displays in the client applications.

Order Status Interval (seconds) – The amount of time, in seconds, that information about the progress of an order is returned to a client application.

Use FIFO Mode – The server sequentially processes orders from first to last and places the recorded discs in the output bin in that order. Other jobs will not start until the current order is complete. This prevents completed discs from being mixed in the output bin. Note: You must pause the server before the field is activated.

Use Verify Only Mode – Used to check previously recorded discs. The disc image is downloaded onto the system, but nothing is recorded on this or any other disc.

Retain Operating Mode on Startup – As a safeguard, Production Server will reset to Normal mode when it is restarted. This setting tells Production Server to retain the mode that is set.

Operating Mode – Determines how the Production Server operates. Select one of the modes.

Normal – This is the default setting. Orders are processed as they come.

Auto Bulk Read – Select this option if there are many master discs to be read and stored on the hard drive. Place all your master discs in the input bin. When the automatic bulk read mode is enabled and the process is started, the Production Server begins reading discs from the input bins.

Note: There is a wizard in the QuickDisc software to help you perform this function.

Bulk Copy – Select this option to activate the bulk copy mode. Used in conjunction with Rimage Copy Stations, bulk copy takes each disc from the Master Input bin, photographs the disc label, then copies the disc content and label onto a blank disc.

Bulk Read – Select this option to activate the bulk read mode. When in bulk read mode, Production Server reads a stack of discs from the input bin. As each job appears in the order file, a disc is loaded from the input bin into a recorder to be read. Discs that are read successfully are unloaded into the output bin and those not read successfully are unloaded into the reject bin.

Note: If a custom application is not available, and many discs need to be read, use the AutoBulkRead mode.

Job Streaming – Select this option to have the autoloader load a disc from the input bin and attempt to read it. If the disc is read successfully, it is considered a master disc. All the following blank discs are recorded from this master disc, until the next master disc is encountered.

Restore Spanned Sets – Select this option to use the autoloader to restore spanned sets of discs created with other Rimage Software.

Note: There is a wizard in the QuickDisc software to help you perform this function.

Direct Loader Control – While in this mode the ePS will allow an application to directly control the Autoloader using special commands. Unless you have an application that needs this mode you should not set it directly.

Server Mode – Determines how the Production Server manages certain conditions. If necessary, select a server mode.

Attended – Select this to have dialogs, errors and other actions handled by a system operator rather than handled automatically.

Unattended – Select this to have autoloaders automatically disabled when there is an error and other autoloaders with the required recorder capabilities are available. When an error occurs, the autoloader is disabled without posting an error dialog and the job or jobs in process are continued by the other available autoloaders.

Kiosk – Select this to have error handling dictated by other related parameters.

Kiosk Mode – Displays only if Kiosk is selected for the Server Mode. If necessary, select a kiosk mode.

Use Automatic Responses on Startup – Allows you to enable the Do NOT Use Printer checkbox.

Do NOT Use Printer – Enables the system to process orders if a disc printer was not found when the Rimage system initialized.

Autoloader Recovery – Allows the server to try the failed autoloader operation again, end the order, or automatically disable an autoloader after you respond to the error by opening and closing the autoloader door.

Printer Recovery – Allows the server to try the failed printer operation again, end the order, or automatically disable a printer after you respond to the error by opening and closing the autoloader door.

Recording

The Recording settings affect the recording process, as well as how to handle some unique formats.

Simulate recording – Allows the system to run an order but not actually record on the disc. This option can be helpful when you want to test the system.

Use new media only – Allows use of only new recordable media (discs) that do not have previously recorded sessions on them. If the system detects previously recorded media while running an order, the disc is rejected. This should not be checked if you are using media that needs additional sessions added. For example, you have standard set of files on the disc, but need to add specific customer files before shipping.

Maximum CD/DVD/BDR recording speed – Change the speed at which Production Server records discs. You can change the speed depending on the selected media and the recorder configuration. Select Maximum to choose the fastest speed available for each installed recorder.

Reject non-ISO9660 for incremental multi-session orders – Signals rejection of all pre-recorded incremental multi-session discs that were not recorded in accordance to the ISO 9660 standards. Use this option when you are adding another recording session to discs using the ISO 9660 standards in the incremental multi-session mode.

Disable ISO9660 extend fixups for multi-session orders – Deactivates ISO9660 extent fixes for multi-session discs.

Add postgap to ISO9660 discs – Allows you to add a postgap to ISO9660 disc and images that do not have a postgap. More than 150 blocks may be added to make the recorded image at least 300 blocks.

Enable use of 90-100 Minute CDRs – Allows use of media that can hold 90 - 100 minutes of data. The recorders cannot detect this kind of media, so this setting allows Production Server to record this media type.

Destroy failed recordings – Allows a disc with a failed recording to be rendered unusable. This pertains only to CD-Rs and certain recorders. This option is not enabled from the factory.

Show alert dialog on incorrect media type – Issues an alert if you have a single-bin autoloader and the media in the bin does not match the media specified in the order. Available on Single-Bin Autoloaders only.

Set book type to DVD-RDM for DVD+R discs – Signals to have recorders read the recorded DVD+R disc as DVD-ROM.

Number of retries on a recording error – Indicates the number of times an order should be attempted after a recording fails. Enter -1 to retry indefinitely.

Printing

These Printing settings are controlled by the Production Server. Most of the printing is controlled by the printer driver and selected label, however these options are configured for reject labels or to disable printing for testing purposes.

Simulate printing – Allows discs to be loaded in the printer but not have a label printed. This is helpful if you want to test the printer loading process.

Note: Remember to disable the Simulate Printing option before you try to create a disc. During simulation, all the operations to process your label are completed, but the system does not print on the disc. If you select a label that contains a serial number, the serial numbers will advance during simulation. Do not select labels with serial numbers when Simulate printing is selected.

Print reject pattern – Enables a specific pattern to be printed on a disc when it is rejected. Available only on Rimage Desktop and Professional Products.

Display error dialog on low ink level – Signals an error message to display when ink reaches a specified level. Available only on Rimage Desktop Products.

Percent remaining threshold – Determines when the system will warn you that the ink level is low. Enter a percentage in this field. Available only on Rimage Desktop Products.

Pick up orders with labels even if printer is offline – Allows discs to be recorded even if a printer is not connected to the autoloader but a label is included in the order.

For more information, visit https://support.rimage.com

Don't pick up orders if low number of prints remain – Signals the autoloader to stop picking discs when a specified amount of ribbon remains.

Prints remaining threshold – Enter a number for the minimum remaining number of print labels that will allow the system to keep picking discs.

Reading

The preferred reader, reading speed, and naming methods for automatic reads are configured here.

Preferred reader – Specifies which disc drive reads the master discs. You can select the recorder in the autoloader or the CD\DVD-ROM drive in the Control Center. The default reader is the autoloader recorder. The CD\DVD-ROM drive in the Control Center can be used for standard data and audio formats; however, the sub-channel information on audio discs is not read. If you need to read discs with a unique format or if you are unsure of the format, use the recorder in the autoloader to read the master disc.

Audio read speed – Sets the speed at which master discs are read. The factory default setting of Maximum enables the Production Server to read audio data at the maximum speed of the disc Reader drive. Depending on your hardware configuration and media requirements, select 1x, 2x, 4x, 8x, or Maximum.

Read error retry count – Sets the number of retries before rejecting a disc while attempting to read it. The value can be between 1 and 1,000,000,000.

Extract error retry count – Sets the number of retries before rejecting a disc while attempting to extract content from it. The value can be between 1 and 1,000,000,000.

Put rejects in output bin in FIFO mode – Select this setting to rejected discs in the bin in FIFO (First In First Out) mode.

Automatic bulk read – Allows multiple master discs to be read from the input bin. The autoloader picks each disc from the input bin, places the disc in a recorder, and reads the disc. After the disc is read, it is placed in the output bin. Several options determine where to store the disc image file, or how to name the file.

Base folder for images – Indicates the path where the system stores the disc images as they are read when in Automatic Bulk Read mode. Additional folders can be appended to this base folder if at least one of these options are selected.

Note: If you do not select one of the following checkboxes, or if the selected option does not meet the conditions, the filename is saved according to the line number and the disc sequence number. It is named as "r;LineX-Y" where X is the line number and Y is the disc sequence number. Track files are named "r;TrackN" where N is 1 - 99.

Use Barcode value as Image Folder name – Enabling this option scans the barcode from the disc and uses it as the folder name. This option requires an optional barcode scanner that can be purchased. The barcode scanner is available on Producer II autoloaders. To use the barcode scanner, view or change Barcode Settings.

Use Volume ID (or UPC/EAN) as Image Folder name – Enabling this options creates a new folder name from the Volume ID or the UPC/EAN. The image is stored under the new folder. This folder is located under the base folder name from the Base folder for images: field.

Note: The Volume ID is typically used for an ISO9660 type image. If an audio disc is read, the audio disc might have the UPC/EAN code. If these conditions are not met, Production Server uses the default naming method. If a barcode is not found on the disc, and the Use Volume ID (or UPC/EAN) as Image Folder Name option is enabled, the folder is named from the Volume ID or UPC/EAN.

Image type for audio tracks – Determines how the audio tracks, read from an audio master disc, are stored. These image types include PCM, WAV, and DDP. The default is PCM.

Create DDP images – Create DDP images. DDP images are used in Bulk Read and Auto Bulk Read operating modes and signals the autoloader to store content in DDP format onto the hard drive.

Use ISRC as filename for audio tracks – Allows the program to read the International Standard Recording Code, if it exists, and use it as the filename.

Print reject label on failed discs – Indicates that when an error occurs, the disc is printed with a REJECTED label and put in the designated reject output bin.

Put failures in reject bin – Indicates that a master discs that could not be read, be placed in the reject bin. This helps you see which discs were not read. This option is available only if the autoloader has a separate reject bin.

Create 'full disc' image files – Indicates that the disc should be read and that the image file written to the base folder on the hard drive.

Extract ISO9660 images to folders and files – Indicates that the disc should be read and that the files written to an ISO9660 folder structure as they are read from the master disc. If this option is not selected, the disc image is stored as an image file using the default naming method. This option does not support UDF.

Note: The above two options are mutually exclusive. You cannot choose both options.

Enter extraction filters separated by a semi-colon (*.ext;\Dir A*.ext) – Allows you to filter what is extracted when extracting ISO9660 Images.

Extraction Filter Examples:

The Extraction Filters Value should contain a semi-colon-separated list of filters.

- Select a specific file Name its full path from the root as: "\Dir A\Dir B\Filename.ext".
- Select a specific folder Name its full path ending with a backslash as: "\Dir A\Dir B\". This will capture all files and sub-folders in 'Dir B'.
- Select all files with a specific extension , use "*.ext".
- Select all extensions of a file with a specific name use "name.*".

- Select all files with a specific extension under a specific folder use "\Dir A*.ext".
- Select all extensions of a file with a specific name under a specific folder use "\DirA\name.*".

Caching

Cache drives are hard drives that hold the temporary disc image file so that streaming the file to the recorder is uninterrupted and under run errors are less likely to occur.

Note: If the Rimage Control Center came from the Rimage factory, the cache drive setting is configured properly. If the software is installed on your own Control Center, Rimage recommends an additional hard drive for every two CD-R recorders or one for every DVD recorder.

Cache drive letters (unseparated list, e.g.'def') – Allows you to indicate the mapped drive letter of the cache drive. You can use drive C: if you have one recorder and no cache hard drives. Rimage recommends a dedicated cache drive for each recorder. No comma separators are required between the drive letters.

Overlap recording with downloading to cache – Signals the autoloader to load a disc in the recorder and start recording as soon as data is ready to record. If this option is not enabled, the load and record process does not start until the disc image file is completely loaded on the cache drive. Not available on Rimage Desktop systems.

Disable image streaming – Allows you to turn off image streaming.

Disallow caching when streaming is enabled in the production order – if caching is required to produce a disc and the streaming attributes were set in the production order then the order fails.

Verify

When a disc is verified, the recorded disc is read and its data is compared against the data stored in the cache memory on the computer's hard drive.

Enable Verification – Signals the autoloader to read the recorded disc and compare the disc's data against the data stored in the cache memory on the control center's hard drive. For all audio discs and some data discs, the verify function changes to a read mode to see if the disc is readable.

Verify Every Nth Disc – Configures the number of discs verified by each recorder, not by the job. Set this option to 1 if every disc must be verified. By setting the count to a higher number, the first disc is always verified and then every Nth disc is verified after the first disc. This option is only available when Enable Verification is selected. Example: If this option is set to 2, the first disc is verified and every second disc after that is verified by each recorder. If you are only running spot checks, you can enter a higher number.

Quick Verify – Select this option to do a Quick verify where only 1% of each disc is verified. This is very adequate for most disc types and a much faster process. Enable compare for audio, mode 2, and XA-form2 tracks.

Use Checksum DLL – Calculates and verifies a checksum value for a recorded data track. Once a recorded disc has passed the Production. Server verify, the final total from the recorded disc is verified by the user's Checksum DLL. Both processes must pass before verification is complete. Only available when the Enable Verification selected and a checksum DLL is installed. View restrictions for using Checksum DLL. The following restrictions apply to using the Checksum DLL:

- The checksum data can be computed only when new media is used, and the session must be the first session of a multi-session disc.
- If you are attempting to record audio, this option is not available. For example, if a mixed mode (data + audio) is being recorded, no DLL calls are made in verification of the audio tracks.
- You cannot run the checksum option unless the data tracks are stored in a disc image (.img) file.

Media

A media code is a CD-R or DVD-R manufacturer code that can be read by the recorder. You can enter up to eight media codes and select an option to accept only media with the specified codes for recording and printing. Use specified media codes – Allows acceptance of only media with the listed codes.

Maximum of 8 media codes can be specified for each media type.

DVD-R – Use the manufacturer ID code

DVD+R or Blu-ray Disc media: Use the Manufacturer ID code and the Media Type ID code with no dash between the two codes.

All DVD discs from a manufacturer, use only the first 3 letters of the Manufacturer ID code.

Diagnostics (Advanced)

These Diagnostic settings are controlled by the Production Server. Selecting these options allows you to create logs that help in diagnosing issues that might arise.

Enable SCSI tracing – Activates a trace file that is used to log recording problems. The file can be sent to a drive manufacturer if there is a question about the legality of a particular command sequence that is causing a problem. Each recorder is traced in a separate file. File names are Scsi_driveF.txt where F is the letter of the drive.

Enable SCSI read/write command tracing – Adds read and write commands to the SCSI trace. Because of the amount of data generated, the read and write commands are not, by default, put in the log.

Enable SCSI resolution timing tracing – Adds the number of milliseconds since Production Server started to each timestamp in the trace file.

Maximum SCSI trace file size (MB) – Forces Production Server to limit the size of the SCSI trace file. By default, the maximum size is 8 MB. If this options is not set, the log file size is unlimited.

Enable Serial tracing – Used to debug autoloader communication problems by tracing all commands sent to the loaders and all responses received from them, along with other serial port status information. Each serial port is traced in a separate file. The filename is SercomN.txt where N is the port number.

Enable serial high resolution timing tracing – Adds the number of milliseconds since Production Server started to each timestamp in the trace file.

Maximum Serial trace file size (MB) – Forces Production Server to limit the size of the log file. By default, the maximum size is 4 MB. If this options is not set, the log file size is unlimited.

Enable Everest tracing – Used to debug Everest printer-related problems by logging all activity associated with the Everest printer. A separate file is generated for each printer named EvLog-COMn.log where n is the serial port number connected to the autoloader containing the printer.

Maximum Everest trace file size (MB) – Forces Production Server to limit the size of the trace file. By default, the maximum size is 8 MB. If this options is not set, the log file size is unlimited.

Enable XML tracing – Used to debug XML message validation problems by logging all XML messages received and most XML messages sent. The generated log file is named XmlLog.txt and is placed in the local logs folder.

Enable XML order status tracing – Causes all the intermediate order status messages to be added to the log. When this is disabled (the default) only the first and last order status messages are logged.

Maximum XML trace file size (MB) – Forces Production Server to limit the size of the trace file. By default, the maximum size is 8 MB. If this options is not set, the log file size is unlimited.

Enable Job Tracing – The Enable Job Tracing setting is used to debug job-control problems by logging all major events associated with all discs in all jobs. Most entries in the file refer to the job ID and disc index. The generated file is named JobTrace.txt and is placed in the local logs folder.

Maximum Job trace file size (MB) – The Maximum job trace file size (MB) setting forces the Production Server to limit the size of the trace file. By default, the maximum size is 8 MB. If this option is not set, the log file size is unlimited.

Maximum Session log trace file size (MB) – Causes Production Server to keep the maximum size of the log file at or under the specified size. By default, the size is 4 MB.

Enable Startup Tracing – Used to debug job-control problems by logging all major events that occur in the startup process. The generated file is named PSrv_Startup.txt and is placed in the local logs folder.

Add timing information to Session log – Adds to the session log, the time that it takes to download, record, and verify an order.

Add under-run information to Session log – Adds an entry to the session log after each recording completes, giving the number of buffer under-run events encountered. A buffer under-run occurs when the PC cannot deliver data fast enough to the drive's buffer.

Add order not taken reason to Session log – Includes in the session log, any information on why an order was rejected by Production Server.

Enable Recording speed tracing – Allows the session log to track the speed used by Production Server while recording.

Disable adaptive tracing – Deactivates the automatic turn-on of the SCSI, Serial, Everest, and XML traces when a related error occurs.

Add reason for streaming not used to session log – Deactivates the automatic turn-on of the SCSI, Serial, Everest, and XML traces when a related error occurs.

Autoloaders

Select settings for single bin autoloaders and to maintain disabled autoloaders.

Keep disabled autoloaders offline on restart – Signals the server to not try to enable the autoloader the next time it starts after the autoloader was disabled.

Disable 'Any Media Mode' for single bin Autoloaders – Allows only one type of media to be used for single bin autoloaders.

Barcode

If the Producer autoloader is fitted with the optional barcode scanner, the barcode settings are controlled by the Production Server. The scanned barcode is used to name the image folder where the disc image is stored for identification. For information about barcode settings, refer to your barcode manual. **The Barcode Port** – This setting allows you to choose the PC Com port that hosts this Barcode scanner.

Use Barcode Index – Use index mark to read barcode. It means to align the disc on the picker using an index mark on the disc (same as for perfect print) in order to read the barcode.

Barcode Angle - (in .25 degree increments, 0.0 - 359.75)

Email

The Email settings allow you to have notices sent automatically when an order is complete, or when there is an error or alert.

Email Addresses – Enter one or more valid email addresses. Separate each address with a semi-colon (;).

Select any of the following notifications:

Send on Order completion – An email is sent when any order using this Production Server is complete.

Send on Error dialog – An email is sent when an order warning occurs, such as running out of discs, autoloader door is opened, a disc is caught in the gripper and printer or retransfer ribbon is out.

Send on Alert dialog – An email is sent when an order alert occurs. Examples of alerts include low printer or retransfer ribbon or low media alerts.

PerfTrack (Performance Track)

The Performance Track settings allow you to set up your database connections and options for the Rimage PerfTrack database. The PerfTrack database stores information about hardware and archive information about jobs that are run on the systems. You view and search the PerfTrack database using the Order Archive Manager software provided with the Rimage Software Suite. The archive information can include user defined fields, they are included in the PS and IS order DTD's.

Database connection string –This is a string that defines a connection to the database. This string is dependent on the database type being used. The default connection string is:

Provider=Microsoft.Jet.OLEDB.4.0;Data Source=<RSF>Database\\Perftrack.mdb

where <RSF> is the Rimage System Folder being used by the Production and Imaging Servers. This creates a Microsoft MDB database file. It is common to change this to use SQL servers of various kinds. The details of this are beyond the scope of this document. Further information is available in many places, here is one: https://connectionstrings.com/

Enable logging of idle time in the IdleLog table – Enable this option if you want to save statistics to the PerfTrack database about how often your system is idle.

Enable logging of supply errors in the ErrorLog table – Enable this option if you want to save supply error statistics to the PerfTrack database.

Enable logging of recording in the RecordingLog table – Enable this option if you want to store statistics about recordings being made (producing) to the PerfTrack database.

Enable addition of hostname to all log entries – Enable this option to add the machine/host name to the database entries. This will help you identify the machine if you compare databases from different Rimage Systems.

Enable update OrderArchive table – Enable this option if you want to update the OrderArchive table with production information. This option can also be enabled in production orders sent by client programs.

Imaging Server Settings

Production Server Server Id: Imaging Server RIMAGESYSTEM1_IS01 Description: Rimage Image Server Imaging Server 10 Order status interval (seconds) Imaging Server Image Image Job Files Image Server Image Image Job Files Image Image Server Image Image Job Files Image Image Image Job Files Image Image Job Files Image Im	Server Settings	
Imaging Server RIMAGESYSTEM1_IS01 Imaging Server Description: Rimage Image Server Imaging Server IO Crder status interval (seconds) Image Messaging Server Write Image Job Files Image Messaging Server Add Orders to ArchiveInfo Table in PerfTrack DB PerfTrack DB Connection String: Provider=Microsoft.Jet.OLEDB.4.0;Data Source=\\Rimage\yetm1\Rimage\Perftrack.m	P	Server Id:
Imaging Server Description: NetPub/WatchFolder 10 ° Order status interval (seconds) Image Messaging Server Write Image Job Files Log XML Messages Add Orders to ArchiveInfo Table in PerfTrack DB PerfTrack DB Connection String: Provider=Microsoft.Jet.OLEDB.4.0;Data Source=\\Rimage\ystem1\Rimage\Perftrack.m	Production Server	RIMAGESYSTEM1_IS01
Imaging Server Rimage Image Server Image NetPub/WatchFolder I0 Order status interval (seconds) Write Image Job Files Log XML Messages Add Orders to ArchiveInfo Table in PerfTrack DB PerfTrack DB Connection String: Provider=Microsoft.Jet.OLEDB.4.0;Data Source=\\Rimage\ystem1\Rimage\Perftrack.m		Description:
NetPub/WatchFolder 10 Crder status interval (seconds) Image: Status interval Write Image Job Files Image: Log XML Messages Add Orders to ArchiveInfo Table in PerfTrack DB PerfTrack DB Connection String: Provider=Microsoft.Jet.OLEDB.4.0;Data Source=\\RimageSystem1\Rimage\Perftrack.m	15 imaging server	Rimage Image Server
Messaging Server Write Image Job Files Log XML Messages Add Orders to ArchiveInfo Table in PerfTrack DB PerfTrack DB Connection String: Provider=Microsoft.Jet.OLEDB.4.0;Data Source=\\RimageSystem1\Rimage\Perftrack.m	NetPub/WatchFolder	10 🖕 Order status interval (seconds)
Messaging Server Log XML Messages Add Orders to ArchiveInfo Table in PerfTrack D8 PerfTrack DB Connection String: Provider=Microsoft.Jet.OLEDB.4.0;Data Source=\\RimageSystem1\Rimage\Perftrack.m		Write Image Job Files
Add Orders to ArchiveInfo Table in PerfTrack DB PerfTrack DB Connection String: Provider=Microsoft.Jet.OLEDB.4.0;Data Source=\\RimageSystem1\Rimage\Perftrack.m	Messaging Server	Log XML Messages
PerfTrack DB Connection String: Provider=Microsoft.Jet.OLEDB.4.0;Data Source=\\RimageSystem1\Rimage\Perftrack.m		Add Orders to ArchiveInfo Table in PerfTrack DB
Provider=Microsoft.Jet.OLEDB.4.0;Data Source=\\RimageSystem1\Rimage\Perftrack.m		PerfTrack DB Connection String:
		Provider=Microsoft.Jet.OLEDB.4.0;Data Source=\\RimageSystem1\Rimage\Perftrack.m
Rimage System Folder:		Rimage System Folder:
\\RIMAGESYSTEM1\Rimage\		\\RIMAGESYSTEM1\Rimage\

Server Id – The Server ID is created automatically by the Rimage system and cannot be changed. It is displayed to show you the name of the server that you are viewing.

Description – The text that describes the server. The description can be up to 30 characters long. It can be displayed in client applications.

Order Status Interval (seconds) – The amount of time, in seconds, between status information messages sent to a client application during the processing of a job.

Write Image Job Files – This option will create an xml file containing all the files that were placed in the image. The format is documented with the image server documentation.

Log XML Message – Add XML messages to a special XML log file. This is useful for debugging, but note that the file can get big, so use only when necessary.

Add Orders to ArchiveInfo Table in PerfTrack DB – Tells the Imaging Server to add records to the ArchiveInfo section of the PerfTrack database that record information about the jobs, images created, and files in the images so that they can be searched using the Order Archive Manager tool.

PerfTrack DB Connection String – This is a read only field showing the current connection string. It can be changed in the PS settings tab.

Rimage System Folder – This is a read only setting that shows the current folder. It is set during Rimage system installation.

Server Settings			_ 🗆 X
Ps Production Server	Image Watch & Networ	rk Publisher Settings	
	Automation:	✓ Enabled	
Is Imaging Server	Post Job Processing:	Remove file after processing	
	Target System:	ANY	
NetPub/WatchFolder	Stabilization Time (mS):	10000 🖕	
Messaging Server	Default Media:	DVDR •	
	Copies:	1 ‡	
	Network Publisher Setti	ings	
	NetPub Folder:	\\RimageSystem1\Rimage\NetPubFolder	
	Max Log File Size (kB):	10000 🖕	
	Image Watch Folder Set	ttings	
	Image Watch Folder:	\\RimageSystem1\Rimage\WatchFolder	
	Image File Extensions:	img,iso,rmg,pmg	
	Label File Extensions:	btw,pdf,jpg	
	Merge File Extensions:	bd	
	Job Counts		
	Jobs Running:	0	
	Jobs Completed:	0	
	Jobs Rejected:	0	
		OK	Cancel

This dialog contains the settings for two modules, the WatchFolder and the NetPub Watcher. WatchFolder monitors the specified folder for ISO files and label files. A production job will automatically be started when a label and ISO file are found. The label file is optional and if used must be copied first. NetPub jobs will be run when they appear in the specified NetPub folder. NetPub jobs are text files that can create discs on the Rimage systems. A separate document is available detailing NetPub operations.

There are four sections, one for common settings to both NetPub and WatchFolder, one for each of NetPub and WatchFolder only specific settings, and the last one giving counts of jobs in process, finished, or failed.

In the common section (Image & Network Publisher Settings)

Automation – Sets whether the NetPub and Watch Server are active or paused. Check the box to make the servers active.

Post Job Processing –Sets whether or not post processing is done. When this setting is enabled job files will be cleaned up, removed, after the job completes.

Target System – Enter the name of a specific Rimage System to use for NetPub or Watch Folder projects or select ANY to have the project sent to any available system.

Stabilization Time – Enter the time, in seconds, that the Watch Server waits to initiate a project after new files are added to the NetPub or Watch folders. The project will not start until no new files are added to the folder for this amount of time.

Default Media – Select a type of media to use. Options are:

- CD-R
- DVD-R
- DVD-R DL
- Blu-ray
- Blu-ray DL
- Blu-ray QL
- Blu-ray TL

Copies – Enter the number of copies that should be made each time a project initiates from the Watch Folder or NetPub servers. For NetPub jobs, this is the default, it can be over-ridden by a NetPub command.

Network Publisher Settings

NetPub Folder – Sets the path to the NetPub job folder.

Max Log File Size (kB) – Sets the maximum size for the log file before it is saved and a new file is started.

Image Watch Folder Settings

Image Watch Folder – Sets the path to the Watch Folder.

Image File Extensions (e.g. img, iso, rmg, pmg) – Enter the image extensions, separated by commas, that the Watch Server looks for in the watch folder. If an extension is not listed here, it is not recognized by the Watch Server and is not included in a project. If more than one file with a listed extension is in the folder at a time, each file becomes a separate project. The default is img, iso, rmg, pmg.

Label File Extensions (e.g. btw, pdf, jpg) – Enter the label file extensions, separated by commas, that the Watch Server looks for in the watch folder. If an extension is not listed here, it is not recognized by the Watch Server and is not included in a project. The default is btw, pdf, jpg.

Merge File Extensions (e.g. txt) – Enter the merge file extensions, separated by commas, that the Watch Server looks for in the watch folder. If an extension is not listed here, it is not recognized by the Watch Server and is not included in a project. The default is txt.

Job Counts

The jobs counts are provided as a read only indication of the activity on the server since the last time it was started such as when the computer was first turned on or rebooted. You cannot modify these counts.

Messaging Server Settings

Server Settings		- 🗆 X
Ps Draduction Server	Email Server Settings	
Production server	Host/Computer name of mail server:	
Is Imaging Server		
NetPub/WatchFolder	Use TLS Encryption	
SM Messaging Server	Port number on mail server:	
	Use user name and password	
	Email user name:	
	Email password:	

Use this procedure to enable the server to send an email of a completed or canceled job.

Note: TLS (Transport Layer Security) enabled mail servers do not work with the Rimage System. In some cases, it might be necessary to configure "Relay email options" on your mail server.

Host/Computer name of mail server – Enter host name of a server that is running the SMTP service.

Host/Computer port number – This number is often 587, but 25 is also common. It must be set to the correct port for your mail server.

Use user name and password – If anonymous access is enabled at the email server, do not select this checkbox. If the SMTP service has Basic Authentication and Anonymous Access disabled, select this checkbox and complete the two fields.

Email user name – Enter the email user name to use for sending.

Email password – Enter the email password to use for sending if your email server requires one.

Bridge Server Settings

This is available when the Rimage Bridge Server is installed (optional).

Server Settings

D	Image Order File Path:	
Production Server	\\1682-BURNS\Rimage\Interfaces\iofile.iof	Select
Is Imaging Server	Production Order File Path:	
NetPub/WatchFolder	\\1682-BURNS\Rimage\Interfaces\pofile.pof	Select
Messaging Server		
Bs Bridge Server		

Image Order File Path – Enter or select the path to the IOF file.

Production Order File Path – Enter or select the path to the POF file.

Rimage Server Details

This item displays the Server Details screen where each of the Rimage Servers for each Rimage System are displayed. This gives you more information about the servers running on each system and their current operational state. You can right click on the servers for more functions.

Server Details			_
	Server Id	State	Info
	(Running)		
Production Server Imaging Server Netpub/Watch Server RIMAGESYSTEM2	RIMAGESYSTEM1_PS01 RIMAGESYSTEM1_IS01 RIMAGESYSTEM1 (Running)	Running Running Running	Produced: 2 Rejected: 2 Discs/Hour: 0 Alerts: 1 Errors: 3 Waiting: 0:0 (hh::mm) Idle: 0:0 (hh::mm) Produced: 1 Rejected: 0 Produced: 0 Rejected: 0 In Process: 0
Production Server Imaging Server Netpub/Watch Server	RIMAGESYSTEM2_PS01 RIMAGESYSTEM2_IS01 RIMAGESYSTEM2	Running Running Running	Produced: 3 Rejected: 0 Discs/Hour: 0 Alerts: 0 Errors: 0 Waiting: 0:0 (hh::mm) Idle: 0:0 (hh:mm) Produced: 0 Rejected: 0
			Close

Messaging Server Details

This item displays technical information about the Rimage Messaging Server connections. You will not have to use this information very often, but it is useful when things are not working as expected or when talking to the Rimage support team. It is provided mostly as a diagnostic tool. See the advanced section later in this document for details on this screens information.

х

Messaging Server Details				_ 🗆 X
Connection: RIMAGESYSTEM2 *				
Messaging Server Version: 1.6.14.1				
Server Protocol Version: 1.1				
Client Protocol Version: 1.1				
Connections Subscribers Listeners Queues				
Client Id State	Client IP	Client Host	Client Port	
AdminServer Active	127.0.0.1	RIMAGESYSTEM2	local	
RIMAGESYSTEM2_WatchServer Active	127.0.0.1	RIMAGESYSTEM2	local	
RIMAGESYSTEM2_ERS Active	192.168.0.20	RIMAGESYSTEM2	49158	
TOM-CORSAIR_Rimage_RSM Active	192.168.0.5	TOM-CORSAIR	41022	
RIMAGESYSTEM2_IS01 Active	192.168.0.20	RIMAGESYSTEM2	49653	
RIMAGESYSTEM2_PS01 Active	192.168.0.20	RIMAGESYSTEM2	49657	
RIMAGESYSTEM2_SVC_SS Active	192.168.0.20	RIMAGESYSTEM2	49670	
QD_ADMINISTRATOR_RIMAGESYST Active	127.0.0.1	RIMAGESYSTEM2	49950	
RIMAGESYSTEM2_Administrator_SS Active	192.168.0.20	RIMAGESYSTEM2	49952	
				Close

Layout

The individual windows of the main screen can be rearranged or moved out of the main interface. For example, if watching jobs is your main function you could drag the Jobs screen from the main screen and make it full size on another monitor. The Layout item will allow you to save a workspace layout to a file name you choose so you could load it again if you want to use the same layout later. The last layout is always saved automatically.

Help

This item displays this help file.

About

This item displays information about the program version and Rimage copyrights.

RFS Information

This item displays information about Rimage Fulfillment Services.

Rimage Systems

Rimage System Manager displays detail information for the server currently selected in the Rimage Systems window. The information shown in the Media and Systems windows is based on this selection. If you have more than one system listed in the window you can select the server to display the current status.

Note: The Messages window shows alerts and warnings from all connected systems.

Rimage Systems								x
	In Process	Produced	Rejected	Discs/Hour	Alerts	Errors	Waiting	Idle
	1	2	2	0	1	3	0:26 (hh:mm)	0:26 (hh:mm)
	0	3	0	0	0	0	0:0 (hh:mm)	0:0 (hh:mm)
4								

You can also right click on one of the servers to perform the following operations:

Pause – Pauses the selected system so that production orders are not picked up. This is useful if you want to take a server offline temporarily.

Stop – Stops a system.

Resume – Resumes a system that was previously paused or stopped.

Settings – Displays the settings for the selected system.

Server Info – Displays Production Server information for the selected system similar to the following screen.

Server Information						
Ps RIMAGES	YSTEM1_PS01					
Server Information	Configuration XML	Session Log				
Status Item				Infomation		Â
Туре	Production Se	erver				
Description	Unknown					
State	Running					
Version	9.1.53.0					
Host name	RIMAGESYST	EM1				
System folder	\\RIMAGESYS	STEM1\Rimage				
Alerts last 24 hours	1	_				
Discs per hour	0					
Copies produced	2					
Copies rejected	2					
Errors last 24 hours	3					
Idle time last 24 hour	rs (mi 392					
Wait time last 24 hou	urs (m 0					
PayPerClick						
Authority	Unknown					
Count	0					
Remaining	0					
Limit	0					
Hot folder	C:\PPC Keys					
GUID	Unknown					
Startup messages						
	Searching for	Devices				
	Drive e: PION	EER BD-RW BDR	208M1.10 SN-N	ICDL009785WL		
	Drive & DIONI		205 0 02 CN UDI	00201.000		•
						<u>C</u> lose

Media (Current System)

This window displays the bin types, quantities of media in each of the bins, and the printer supply status for the selected system.

Bi	ns: Combination		Printer: Everest 4	00
Bin 1	CDR Input Only	26	Ribbon	Color
Bin 2	DVDR Input Only	20	Ribbon panels	311
Bin 3	Output/Reject	21	Retransfer sheets	83
Tray*	Unused	0	Discs printed	107
		Conf	igure Bins	
		Ref	resh Bins	

Bins – Each bin is listed with the current media type and quantity in the bin. A yellow dot is displayed when the supplies are getting low and a red dot displays when supplies are at 0 for a bin.

Printer – Displays the printer type and supply levels for the printer, if known. A yellow dot displays when the printer supplies are low and a red dot displays when the printer is waiting supplies to be replaced.

Configure Bins – Select this button to change the bin configuration for a system. You will be presented with the following screen where you can select the types or functions you want to use for each bin.

Media Type	
Combination	Select 'Combination' for multiple media types.
Bin 1 DVDR Input Only	DVDR Input Only
Bin 2 CDR Input Only	CDR Input Only
Bin 3 Output/Reject	Output/Reject
Tray Unused	Unused
	OK

Some Rimage autoloaders have multiple bins that you can configure as input, output, or as a reject bin. You can configure the System so that it uses the bins of the autoloader as a supply source until empty, and then converts the bin to an output location for the completed discs. The default bin configuration is set so that two or more bins contain blank media.

Autoloaders with DVD recorders can record CDs and DVDs. Autoloaders with Blu-ray recorders can record Blu-rays, DVDs or CDs.

Before an order is submitted, the correct media type must be placed in the supply bin and the Media Type must be selected.

Note:

- The current bin usage (Input, Output or Reject) displays to the right of the dropdown lists.
- The options that display in each dropdown list vary depending on the autoloader being used.
- The default configuration for a four-bin autoloader starts picking discs from bin 3, and all bins are configured as a single media type.

From the Bin dropdown list, select the desired setting.

Your choices are (depends on options installed in your Rimage System):

- Master Input (Used with Bulk Copy mode only)
- Input
- Output
- Reject
- Output Reject
- Collate
- Reserved Input
- CD Input
- DVD Input
- DVDR-DL Input
- Blu-ray Input
- Blu-ray DL Input
- Blu-ray TL Input
- Blu-ray QL Input
- DVDR-CSS Input
- DVDR-CSS-DL Input

From the Tray dropdown list, select the desired setting. This option is only available if the autoloader has an external output tray or bin.

Your choices are:

- Unused
- Output
- Reject
- Output Reject
- Reserved Output

From the Media Type dropdown list, select the desired setting.

Notes:

- If you select Combo in the dropdown list, you can specify the media type in each bin. Combination setting is available only on autoloaders with multiple bins.
- If you select any of the DVD selections from the list, then CD-R orders will not start.

Your choices are:

- CDR
- DVDR
- DVDR-DL
- DVDR-CSS
- Blu-ray
- Blu-ray DL
- Blu-ray TL
- Blu-ray QL
- Combination

Refresh Bins – Select this button if you need to refresh the levels in the bins. For example, if you open the door on your autoloader and put more media in one or more bins, the system doesn't really know that quantities. This operation resyncs the quantities of media in each bin so that it shows correctly on the screen.

Rimage Sy	stem Manager			x
8	Are you sure yo	ou want to refres	h the input bins	on RIMAGESYSTEM1?
		OK	Cancel]

Messages

The messages window shows any pending alerts, problems with connected Rimage Systems, supply warnings, and loss of connection warnings. This window is a quick way to gauge the health of all of the connected Rimage Systems on your network.



For more information, visit https://support.rimage.com

System (Current System)

This window shows details about the currently selected Rimage System. Each of the components are shown with a green dot indicating no problems, a yellow dot, for warning, and a red dot if they component is missing or disabled. You can click on the down arrow next to each component to expend the list to see more details about each line.



You can right click on each line to:

Enable – Enable a component that has been disabled.

Disable a Recorder – Put a particular recorder offline to cause it not to be used until re-enabled. **Update Firmware** – Update firmware to any of the components. See the section on Updating Firmware (Advanced) for more information on this operation.

Jobs Status

This window shows the status for all jobs that started on any of the connected systems since the RSM program started. This window shows you the jobs for all of the connected systems including jobs that are being run on any workstation.

	-	-	-			-
Order Id	Progress	Quantity	Status	Stage	Type	Server
D Spanned Order Id: QD_ADMINISTRATOR_	RIMAGESYSTEM2_0	004 Progress: 1	00%			
QD_ADMINISTRATOR_RIMAGESYSTEM2_0004_1001	100%	1 of 1	Completed	Completed	Image Set	RIMAGESYSTEM2
QD_ADMINISTRATOR_RIMAGESYSTEM2_0004	100%	3 of 3	Completed	Completed	Disc Set CDR	RIMAGESYSTEM2
QD_ADMINISTRATOR_RIMAGESYSTEM2_0004_P00	100%	1 of 1	Completed	Completed	Record CDR	RIMAGESYSTEM2
QD_ADMINISTRATOR_RIMAGESYSTEM2_0004_P00	100%	1 of 1	Completed	Completed	Record CDR	RIMAGESYSTEM2
QD_ADMINISTRATOR_RIMAGESYSTEM2_0004_P00	100%	1 of 1	Completed	Completed	Record CDR	RIMAGESYSTEM2
🕐 🦲 Spanned Order Id: QD_TOM_RIMAGESYST	EM1_0323 Progres	s: 67%				
QD_TOM_RIMAGESYSTEM1_0323_I001	100%	3 of 3	Completed	Completed	Image Set	RIMAGESYSTEM1
QD_TOM_RIMAGESYSTEM1_0323	67%	2 of 3	In Process	Busy	Disc Set CDR	RIMAGESYSTEM1
QD_TOM_RIMAGESYSTEM1_0323_P002	100%	1 of 1	Completed	Completed	Record CDR	RIMAGESYSTEM1
QD_TOM_RIMAGESYSTEM1_0323_P003	100%	1 of 1	Completed	Completed	Record CDR	RIMAGESYSTEM1
QD_TOM_RIMAGESYSTEM1_0323_P004	0%	0 of 1	In Process	Recording disc	Record CDR	RIMAGESYSTEM1

For more information, visit https://support.rimage.com

This window allows you to perform the following functions. You can select jobs by clicking on one, holding down the shift key to select a range, or holding down the ctrl key to select individual jobs:

Cancel – Cancel one or more selected jobs.

Suspend – Suspends one or more selected jobs.

Resume – Resumes one or more selected jobs that have been previously suspended.

Copies – Allows you to change the number of copies being produced for a job. This can only be done for one job at a time and only for jobs that are actually producing physical media (Production Jobs).

Filter – Allows you to select to view only jobs in a particular state. States include:

- All Shows all jobs.
- Pending Shows only jobs that are waiting to start.
- In Process Shows only jobs that are currently being worked on.
- **Completed** Shows only jobs that have completed successfully.
- Canceled Shows only jobs that have been canceled by the user.
- Rejected Shows only jobs that have been rejected or failed.

Right Click Menu

View Job Details – Displays a screen for a single selected job that shows more job detail including what devices are working on the job, the original order XML, and all of the job components. See the section on Job Details (Advanced) later in this document for more information on job status.

Job Details				_ 🗆 🗙
Order Details Order XML				< > >
Job Status				
Status	Info			
Server	RIMAGESYSTEM1_PS01			
Status	Completed			
Stage	Completed			
Progress	100%			
Copies produced	3 of 3			
Job Attributes				
Attribute	Value			
Client Id	QD_TOM_RIMAGESYSTE	EM1		
Media	CDR			
Order Id	1 - QD_TOM_RIMAGESY	STEM1_0322_P002		
Order Id	2 - QD_TOM_RIMAGESY	/STEM1_0322_P003		
Order Id	3 - QD_TOM_RIMAGES	/STEM1_0322_P004		
Device Status				
Name	Status	Progress	Speed	Streaming
•				Þ
				Refresh Close

Cancel Job – Cancels one or more selected jobs.

Remove Completed Jobs – Removes all jobs from the list that have been finished. **Filter** – Allows you to select to view only jobs in a particular state. States include:

- All Shows all jobs.
- **Pending** Shows only jobs that are waiting to start.
- In Process Shows only jobs that are currently being worked on.
- **Completed** Shows only jobs that have completed successfully.
- **Canceled** Shows only jobs that have been canceled by the user.
- **Rejected** Shows only jobs that have been rejected or failed.

Setting Up Preferences

General

	General	
General	C Run Rimage System Manager when Windows starts	
Alerts	\checkmark Show the Rimage System Manager screen at startup	
Messages	Show Exit Dialog	
Advanced		
	Rimage Applications	
	Show QuickDisc on the taskbar menu	Install
	Show CD Designer on the taskbar menu	Install
	Show Netpub Editor on the taskbar menu	Install
	Show Order Archive Manager the on taskbar menu	Install
	L	

This screen contains the most often changed settings for RSM.

Run Rimage System Manager when Windows Starts – Enable this feature if you want RSM to on your computer whenever you log into Windows. When this feature is enabled RSM will just start up on the system tray. You will see some messages as RSM connects to the Rimage Systems.

Show the Rimage System Manager screen at startup – Enable this feature if you want the main RSM screen to pop up when it connects to the first Rimage System it finds. If you disable this feature you can always Display the Rimage System Manager from the tray icon menu.

Show Exit Dialog – Enable this feature (enabled by default) if you want an 'Are you sure' dialog to appear when you try to exit RSM. There is a checkbox in the 'Are you sure' dialog to disable this feature, so you can turn it back on here.

Show QuickDisc on the taskbar menu – Enable this feature if you want to have QuickDisc as a selection in the Applications section on the taskbar menu. If you are running RSM on a workstation (not a Rimage System) and QuickDisc is not installed, an Install button will appear that allows you to easily install this application on your workstation.

Show CD Designer on the taskbar menu – Enable this feature if you want to have CD Designer as a selection in the Applications section on the taskbar menu. This application is installed with the Rimage Software Suite and QuickDisc.

Show NetPub Editor on the taskbar menu – Enable this feature if you want to have the NetPub Editor as a selection in the Applications section on the taskbar menu. When NetPub Editor is not installed, an Install button will appear that allows you to easily install this application on your workstation.

Show Order Archive Manager on the taskbar menu – Enable this feature if you want to have the Order Archive Manager as a selection in the Applications section on the taskbar menu. When Order Archive Manager is not installed, an Install button will appear that allows you to easily install this application on your workstation.

Alerts

This screen allows you to set up conditions for the alert messages you receive from Rimage Systems.

SH	Rimage System Manager F	Preferences	×
	General	Alerts Show alerts from all systems	
	Alerts 🤆	O Show alerts from select systems only:	
	Messages	Enter systems in a comma delimited list.	
	Advanced	O Do not show any alerts	
		Show alert bubble tip	
		Show full alert window	
		Play Sound on Alerts	
			_
		OK Cancel	

Show alerts from all systems – When this option is selected you will receive alerts for all of the Rimage Systems that are currently connected.

Show alerts from select systems only – When this option is selected you will be able to enter a list of the systems from which you want to receive alerts. You enter the list of system/machine names separated by a comma.

Do not show any alerts – When this option is selected you will not see any alert messages.

Show alert bubble tip – When this option is enabled you will see small windows pop up on the bottom right of your monitor (taskbar) when an alert is received from a Rimage System.

Show full alert window – When this option is enabled the full Alerts window will pop up whenever a new alert is received. This is off by default because this window popping will come to the front on your desktop and may interrupt other work you might be doing. As an alternative you can click on any of the alert bubble messages to have this window displayed when you really want to see it.

Play Sound on Alerts – Play a sound whenever an alert balloon tip is displayed. You can turn this off if you don't like the reminder sounds playing for alerts.

Messages

This screen allows you to select the kinds of warnings you want to see in the Messages windows.

Rimage System Manager	Preferences	×
General	Messages Show warning when a Rimage System is not connected	
Alerts	Show a warning when a Rimage Server is offline	
Messages	 Show a warning when there are Alert messages Show a warning when Autoloaders need attention 	
Advanced	Show a warning when Bins need attention	
	Show a warning when Printers need attention	
	Show a warning when Recorders need attention	
	OK Cancel	

Show warning when a Rimage System is not connected – Enable this option to have warnings displayed when one of the servers loses a connection. This could happen if the Rimage System is rebooted or the power or network is lost.

Show a warning when a Rimage Server is offline – Enable this option to have warnings displayed when any of the Rimage Servers is paused or offline.

Show a warning when there are Alert messages – Enable this option to have alert messages displayed. When there is an alert listed in the Messages window you can click there to open the Alerts Viewer.

Show a warning when Autoloaders need attention – Enable this option to show a warning when an Autoloader is disabled.

Show a warning when Bins need attention – Enable this option to show a warning when bin supplies are low.

Show a warning when Printers need attention – Enable this option to show a warning when printer supplies are low or when a printer is disabled.

Show a warning when Recorders need attention – Enable this option to show a warning when a recorder is disabled.

Advanced

This screen allows you to change the timers and default port number that are used by RSM.

Rimage System Manager P	references	x
General	Advanced Default Rimage Port:	
Alerts	4664	
Messages		
Advanced G		
	Timers	
	How often (in seconds) should we check for Rimage System status changes?	
	180 🗘	
	How old (in hours) should completed jobs be before being removed from the list?	
	10 🗘	
	How often (in seconds) should we check for servers going offline?	
	10 🗘	
I		
	OK Cancel	

Default Rimage Port – By default the Rimage System servers communicate on port 4664. You will not likely have to change this, but you can change it here if you need to use a different port number on your network.

How often (in seconds) should we check for Rimage System changes? This is the amount of time, in seconds, that elapses before we force an update of status from Rimage Systems. The default is 180 seconds (3 minutes). You do not need to force this check very often as it is done automatically when other system operations occur, but this check ensures that it is, at least, done periodically even when a system is idle.

How old (in hours) should completed jobs be before being removed from the list? This is the amount of time, in hours, that elapses before completed jobs are automatically removed from the on screen list. The default is 10 hours. You can also manually remove finished jobs in the right click menu of the Job Window. This feature is only really useful if you have a really high number of jobs submitted and the system seems sluggish because of the long list.

How often (in seconds) should we check for servers going offline? This is the amount of time, in seconds, that elapses before RSM automatically checks for lost connections. The default is 10 seconds. It is unlikely that connections will be lost, but this check is very fast. You should only change this to do the check more often if you have a lot of problems with network connections.

Making Connections (Advanced)

This screen allows you to make more advanced decisions about how RSM connects to Rimage Systems. You would use this screen if you:

- Want to connect to only certain Rimage Systems.
- Can't use the Rimage Discovery Service (NetBIOS based).
- Need to connect to Rimage Systems using an IP address rather than a machine name.

onfigure Rimage System Connection	15	
Always connect to Ri	mage Systems that are online (recommended)	
Note: When you select this option	any systems running will be connected to automatically.	
Select or add the svs	tems that you want to use	
Note: When you select this option the	ne current systems will be displayed and you will be able to select the ones you want	to use.
Host name	Servers	
RIMAGESYSTEM1	RIMAGESYSTEM1_PS01, RIMAGESYSTEM1_IS01	
RIMAGESYSTEM2	RIMAGESYSTEM2_PS01, RIMAGESYSTEM2_IS01	
RIMAGESYSTEM2	RIMAGESYSTEM2_PS01, RIMAGESYSTEM2_IS01 Find The Rimage Systems That Are Currently Online	
RIMAGESYSTEM2	RIMAGESYSTEM2_PS01, RIMAGESYSTEM2_IS01 Find The Rimage Systems That Are Currently Online	
RIMAGESYSTEM2	RIMAGESYSTEM2_PS01, RIMAGESYSTEM2_IS01 Find The Rimage Systems That Are Currently Online or a Machine Name or IP Address Manually	
RIMAGESYSTEM2	RIMAGESYSTEM2_PS01, RIMAGESYSTEM2_IS01 Find The Rimage Systems That Are Currently Online or a Machine Name or IP Address Manually	
RIMAGESYSTEM2 Click here to enter Machine Name or IP A	RIMAGESYSTEM2_PS01, RIMAGESYSTEM2_IS01 Find The Rimage Systems That Are Currently Online or a Machine Name or IP Address Manually ddress:	
RIMAGESYSTEM2 Click here to enter Machine Name or IP A	RIMAGESYSTEM2_PS01, RIMAGESYSTEM2_IS01 Find The Rimage Systems That Are Currently Online or a Machine Name or IP Address Manually ddress: Add	
RIMAGESYSTEM2 Click here to entee Machine Name or IP A Try Connection	RIMAGESYSTEM2_PS01, RIMAGESYSTEM2_IS01 Find The Rimage Systems That Are Currently Online or a Machine Name or IP Address Manually ddress: Add	
RIMAGESYSTEM2	RIMAGESYSTEM2_PSO1, RIMAGESYSTEM2_ISO1 Find The Rimage Systems That Are Currently Online or a Machine Name or IP Address Manually ddress: Add http://www.com/address.com/addre	

Always connect to Rimage Systems that are online (Recommended) – This is the default option and, when set, causes RSM to automatically connect to any Rimage Systems that are discovered on the network. This is the easiest way to operate because you will always see a list of the systems that are currently running; switched on. Unless you have a specific reason to connect otherwise, we recommend you just use this option. This is especially useful when you have only one or a few Rimage Systems.

Select or add the systems that you want to use – When you have many systems this option can be used to select only the ones you want to monitor. When using Discovery and this option, a list of the systems currently online will be presented and you can check any of the systems you want to watch. When a system is checked in this option it will show up in the Systems window in RSM even when it is not online.

Click here to enter a Machine Name or IP Address Manually – Clicking this link causes a drop down window to appear where you can enter machine names or IP addresses for machines that are not discovered. This option is most useful when you are not using the Rimage Discovery service or when you need to enter an IP address. Enter a machine name and select "Add" to add the machine to the list. **Don't automatically detect Rimage Systems.** I'll just add them manually – When this option is selected the Rimage Discovery service is disabled and you will be required to enter the name or IP address for any systems you want to monitor. This option is not recommended, but provided for anyone who may not be able to use the Rimage Discovery service.

Note: All of the Rimage Systems that are connected to a Messaging Server (eMS) on a selected (checked) Rimage System will show up in the list. For example, if you have three Rimage Systems, RIMAGESYSTEM1, RIMAGESYSTEM2, and RIMAGESYSTEM3 and they are all installed to use the Messaging Server on RIMAGESYSTEM1, selecting RIMAGESYSTEM1 will cause all three servers to be monitored.

This is also true if you turn off using the Rimage Discovery Service and enter the Machine Names by hand. Any multiply connected systems will also be displayed.

Job Details (Advanced)

The Job Details window shows more detailed information about a selected job that includes the device name, device status, progress, recording speed, data method (file or streaming) and device error messages.

Details				_ □
rder Details Order XML				۹)
Job Status				
Status	Info			
Server	RIMAGESYSTEM1_PS01			
Status	Completed			
Stage	Completed			
Progress	100%			
Copies produced	3 of 3			
Job Attributes				
Attribute	Value			
Client Id	QD_TOM_RIMAGESYST	EM1		
Media	CDR			
Order Id	1 - QD_TOM_RIMAGES	YSTEM1_0322_P002		
Order Id	2 - QD_TOM_RIMAGES	YSTEM1_0322_P003		
Order Id	3 - QD_TOM_RIMAGES	YSTEM1_0322_P004		
Device Status				
Name	Status	Progress	Speed	Streaming
4				
				Refresh Close

Status

- **Pending** Indicates that the order is currently waiting for a server to become available so the order can be processed.
- In process Indicates that the order is currently being processed.
- **Completed** Indicates that the order is successfully finished.
- Canceled Indicates that the order was canceled by a user.
- **Failed** Indicates that the order failed due to unforeseen circumstances. The reason for the failure was reported to the client software.

Stage

- Waiting Indicates that the order is waiting for the hardware to become available.
- **Busy** Indicates that the hardware is busy and the job has to wait. For example, this may happen if a recorder finishes, but the printer is still finishing a disc.
- **Protecting** Indicates that the disc image is currently being protected using Rimage Video Protect (if available and enabled).
- **Downloading** Indicates that content for this order is being streamed to the server.
- Recording disc Indicates that one or more disc is being recorded.
- Fixating Indicates that one or more disc is being finalized after recording.
- **Destroying** Indicates that one or more disc is being destroyed by a recorder. The recorder must have the capability to destroy discs.

- **Printing** Indicates that a label is being printed on a disc for this order.
- **Mapping** Indicates that a disc for this order is being read for content mapping. This is a precursor to reading the content on the disc.
- **Reading** Indicates that the content of a disc is currently being read onto the server's fixed disk.
- **Completed** Indicates that all of the order's stages have been successfully completed.
- **Imaging** Indicates that the file system for the order is currently being created.
- **Suspending** Indicates that the order is currently being stopped. This action may take a while if discs are currently in process and must be completed first.
- Suspended Indicates that an order is currently stopped.
- **Canceling** Indicates that an order is in the process of being cancelled after a user request. This action may take a while if discs are currently in process and must be completed or rejected first.

Progress

Displays the percent of the current order that is complete.

Copies Completed

Indicates the number of discs in the order that are finished compared to the total number of discs in the order.

Device Status

Displays the status of the system that is currently processing the order. This includes Recorder or Printer status depending on the state of the job.

Device

The name of recorder or printer that is currently working on the job.

Status

- Waiting Indicates that the system is waiting for the device to become ready for use.
- **Protecting** Indicates that the disc image is currently protected through the use of Rimage Video Protect (if available and enabled).
- **Downloading** Indicates that content is being streamed to the server for use by this device.
- Loading Indicates that one or more discs is being moved
- to the recorders.
- **Checking Discs** Indicates that any disc loaded in the recorders is being checked to ensure that it is blank and is a valid media type.
- **Recording** Indicates that content is being recorded on one or more disc.
- **Fixating** Indicates that one or more disc is being finalized after recording.
- **Verifying** Indicates that a disc that was just recorded is being checked against the original content. Verification must be enabled in the Verify settings tab.
- Queued for FIFO Indicates that during Spanning a subsequent disc is recorded before a disc in line before it. For example, disc 4 of 12 is recorded before disc 3 of 12.
- **Unloading** Indicates that one or more discs is being removed from the recorder or printer.
- **Rejecting** Indicates that a disc failed while being recorded or printed and is being placed in the reject bin.

- **Destroying** Indicates that one or more disc is being destroyed by a recorder. The recorder must have the capability to destroy discs.
- **Printing** Indicates that a disc for this order is being printed.
- **Mapping** Indicates that a disc for this order is being read for content mapping. This is a precursor to reading the content on the disc.
- **Reading** Indicates that the content of a disc is currently being read onto the server's fixed disk.
- Suspended Indicates that an order was suspended while in process on this device.
- **Busy** Indicates that another function other than processing orders, is being performed by this device.

Progress

Displays the device's progress in regard to this order.

Speed

Displays the rate at which the recorder is currently writing.

Data Access

Indicates how the Production Server is receiving the image file data. It is either from a File or Streaming.

Message

Displays any errors messages for the device.

Order XML

This is the raw XML code for the selected order.

Messaging Server Details (Advanced)

saging Server Details						_ □
Connection: RIMAGESYSTEM1		*				
lessaging Server Version: 1.6.1	4.1					
erver Protocol Version: 1.1						
lient Protocol Version: 1.1						
onnections Subscribers	Listeners	Queues				
Client Id	State		Client IP	Client Host	Client Port	
AdminServer	Active		127.0.0.1	RimageSystem1	local	
imageSystem1_WatchServer	Active		127.0.0.1	RimageSystem1	local	
IMAGESYSTEM1_IS01	Active		127.0.0.1	RimageSystem1	1033	
RIMAGESYSTEM1_ERS	Active		127.0.0.1	RimageSystem1	1034	
RIMAGESYSTEM1_JS01	Active		o1	RimageSystem1	1037	
RIMAGESYSTEM1_PS01	Active		127.0.0.1	RimageSystem1	1040	
RIMAGESYSTEM1_SVC_SS	Active		127.0.0.1	RimageSystem1	1050	
OM-CORSAIR_Rimage_RSM	Active		192.168.0.5	TOM-CORSAIR	37154	
D_TOM_RIMAGESYSTEM1	Active		127.0.0.1	RimageSystem1	2496	
RIMAGESYSTEM1_Tom_SS01	Active		127.0.0.1	RimageSystem1	2498	
						Close

Connections

Connections are all clients interacting with the selected Messaging Server (eMS).

Client Host – Displays the host name of the currently connected client.

Client IP – Displays the internet address of the client's computer.

Client Port – Displays the port name that the client is connected through.

Client Id – Displays the connected client identifier. Typically, this is the name of the control center and the software components' names.

State – Displays whether the client is connected locally or remotely.

Subscribers

Client Id – Displays connected client identifiers. Typically, this is the name of the control center and the software components' names.

Listener Id – Displays the unique identifier of this Listener.

Selector – Filters what information the subscriber is monitoring as configured in the client application.

Subscription Id – Displays the unique identifier for this subscriber.

Topic – Displays the message destination that this subscriber is monitoring.

Type – Displays the type of subscriber.

- **Durable** A permanent message monitor whose lifespan is active even if the client is disconnected.
- **Non-Durable** A temporary message monitor whose lifespan is limited by the duration of the client application connection.

Listeners

Client Id – Displays the host name of the currently connected client.

Listener Id - Displays the unique identifier for this Listener.

Selector – Filters what information the Listener is monitoring as configured in the client application.

Type – Displays the type of subscriber.

- **Durable** A permanent message monitor whose lifespan is active even if the client is disconnected.
- **Non-Durable** A temporary message monitor whose lifespan is limited by the duration of the client application connection.

Queue – The Queue column displays the name of the specific Queue the Listener is currently monitoring.

Queues

When multiple servers are connected to the eMS, the servers can be divided into logical groups called Server Queues. Server Queues are helpful for organizations that have multiple Rimage Systems. In some cases, certain systems might be allocated for production of discs, while other systems might be used for marketing, engineering, sales, or other departments in the organization.

Name – Displays the identity of the Queue.

Capacity – Displays the number of orders a Queue can contain.

Available Size – Displays the amount of space that is currently available in the Queue.

- **Real Size** Displays the number of orders that are currently in the Queue.
- **Server Type** Shows whether this is a Production order or Imaging order.

Types of eMS Messages

Messaging Server (eMS) messages are provided by the Rimage Software Suite, Version 7.x and higher, and are used by the Rimage components and third-party applications. These messages can be grouped into the following

categories:

- Order Messages Production Order, Image Order messages, and Cancel Request messages.
- Order Status Messages Production Order Status and Image Order Status messages.
- Server Configuration Messages Production Server Configuration, Image Order Configuration, and Bridge Server Configuration messages.
- **System Messages** Alert Dialog and Error Dialog messages. These messages notify the client of server problems such as 'out of discs'.
- Server Requests Production Server requests or Imaging Server requests.
- Server Replies Production Server or Imaging Server replies.

Each message is composed of network address information and a payload. A payload is the actual package of data being sent to the other application. The payload can be an order, order status, or similar data.

View examples

Examples of the messaging that occurs during order processing include:

- An order is sent to a cluster. A client, such as QuickDisc or a third party client, sends an Order message to the Messaging System via the Client API. The Order message contains the XML document as its message payload.
- Production Server or Imaging Server picks up the order from the cluster.
- The client application receives order status messages from Production Server or Imaging Server through Messaging System during order processing.

Production Modes (Advanced)

It's easy to get started using your Rimage equipment right out of the box. When it arrives, you unpack it, connect a few wires, and follow a few simple set up instructions. Just like that, you're up and running making discs using either your own client or a Rimage packaged client, like QuickDisc. You don't really have to think much about the software that is running behind the scenes. The Rimage server paradigm consists of several Windows Servers. The main ones include:

ePS (Production Server) – Controls the Rimage System hardware and produces the actual discs. eIS (Imaging Server) – Creates the various file system images needed turn your data into discs. eMS (Messaging Server) – Manages the passing of messages back and forth between the other servers and clients.

When you see the lift arm on the Rimage system move or a drawer open on one of your recorders, it's Production Sever that is pulling the strings. Typically, Production Server is used with the default settings, but this section describes a few of the advanced modes.

Production Server Modes

Production Server has several modes that can be set that tell it how to operate. By default, Production Server comes configured in "Normal" mode, where orders are received and processed during normal operation. The other modes are discussed in detail in this article, but here is a short description of five of the modes:

Normal	Production Server periodically scans for orders. When an order is available that is specified for that particular server or for any server, Production Server picks up the order and processes it normally. Normal mode has a sub-mode called Verify Only Mode where Production Server can be set up to validate existing discs by comparing them to the original master disc or the original image file saved to a disk location available to Production Server.
Job Streaming	Production Server loads discs from the input bin and produces one or more copies based on the way the discs are stacked in the bin.
Bulk Read	Production Server scans the queue as normal, but only accepts "read" type orders. Client software can submit read orders at any time, but in Normal mode the user is prompted to put the disc into the Rimage system input bin when the order starts. While in Bulk Read mode Production Server assumes the disc or discs for the orders are already in the bin.
Automatic Bulk Read	Production Server automatically loads discs from the input bin and reads and saves the files from the discs to a location available to Production Server. The user can set the location for the files as well as other parameters that specify how the read is done.
Restore Spanned Set	Production Server automatically loads discs from the input bin and reads them as a set of spanned discs that were created using Rimage's disc spanning format. It saves the files from the discs to a location available to Production Server. The

user can set the location for the files as well as other parameters that specify how the read is done.

Verify Only Mode

When Verify Only Mode is enabled for a record or copy production order, Production Server assumes the disc or discs in the input bin are already recorded and need to be validated. Production Server uses the image that is being downloaded for the order, or, in the case of a copy order, a "master disc" that is placed in the system at runtime. The order runs as it would normally, but the recording step is skipped.

- 1. Pause the Rimage System where you want to do this process.
- 2. Place the discs into the input bin on the Rimage System.
- 3. Open the Server Settings. Select **Use Verify Only Mode** from the General tab. Note: Verify Only Mode is most useful for Image to Disc or Copy orders. If you re-image the content, the image will be different because the timestamps of the files will change and the verification will fail.
- 4. Save the Settings by selecting 'OK'.
- 5. Restart the system.

Scenario:

You would like to verify a disc that you previously recorded to make absolutely sure that the disc contains the data you intended.

- 1. From Rimage Systems list, right click on the system where you will be doing this process and select **Pause** from the right click menu.
- 2. From Rimage Systems list, right click on the system where you will be doing this process and select **Settings** from the right click menu. The Server Settings screen will display.
- 3. On the General tab, select the **Use Verify Only Mode** checkbox.
- 4. Select **OK** to close the screen.
- 5. From Rimage Systems list, right click on the system where you will be doing this process and select **Resume** from the right click menu. The Rimage System will start processing the discs.
- 6. Run your order through again using the same image as you did in the previous order.

Note: Remember to turn Verify Only Mode off, by deselecting the checkbox, when you are done to allow orders to run normally on the server.

Job Streaming Mode

Job Streaming is a very specific, but very useful, mode for Production Server. It allows you to make multiple copies of multiple discs without manual intervention. A normal disc copy operation requires you to wait until the server is ready to make each copy, place the copy in the Rimage system's bin when prompted, and then remove the disc when done. Job Streaming mode helps you to automate this process for one or more copy orders. Job Streaming mode requires a specific setup for the discs to be used and for the server.

- 1. Pause Production Server.
- 2. Stack the discs in the proper order. The first disc in each set is the master (the one you want to copy) and the subsequent discs are the blank discs that are used for the copies.
- 3. Place the **discs** into the input bin on the Rimage System.
- 4. Select Job Streaming.
- 5. Start **Production Server**.

Scenario

You would like to make 5 copies of 3 different discs. Since this takes some time, you want this to be done automatically.

Place **discs** in the bin in the following configuration:



Master disc #1 5 blank discs Master disc #2 5 blanks discs Master disc #3 5 blank discs

- 1. From Rimage Systems list, right click on the system where you will be doing this process and select **Pause** from the right click menu.
- 2. From Rimage Systems list, right click on the system where you will be doing this process and select **Settings** from the right click menu. The Server Settings screen will display.
- 3. On the General tab, select the JobStreaming mode in the Operating Modes dropdown list.
- 4. Select **OK** to close the screen.
- 5. Places the stack of discs in the bins.
- 6. From Rimage Systems list, right click on the system where you will be doing this process and select **Resume** from the right click menu. The Rimage System will start processing the discs.

Note: Remember to turn Job Streaming mode off, by setting the operating mode back to Normal, when you are done to allow orders to run normally on the server.

Prepare Job Streaming Labels

Before you activate the Job Streaming Mode, the labels must be prepared. If the master disc is not ISO9660 and it has a media catalog number (UPC/EAN code), use the media catalog number as the base file name. If your master disc has the ISO9660 structure, you can use either the Volume ID method or the Job ID method.

Volume ID Method – The Production Server uses labels that match the Volume ID from the master-disc image file.

Job ID Method – The Production Server uses labels that match the Job ID when processing orders. Labels are named with the Job ID in a simple format like "LineX - N.btw". The 'X' is the autoloader number. The 'N' is the sequence number of the master disc. If there is a label that matches the job ID, the label will be printed on those discs. The labels would be named "Line1 - 1.btw" for the first label, and "Line1 - 2.btw" for the second label for the first autoloader. There must be a space on both sides of the '-' (dash).

Label Location Method

Job stream labels must be stored in the <Rimage System Folder>\Labels\Job Stream\ folder.

Note: If no label files are found with the appropriate base file name, labels will not be printed on the recorded discs.

If you use this method, be sure to remove the label files from the job stream folder after the orders are completed to assure they are not used for the next job stream.

Order of the Search Labeling Method

Production Server searches the Job Stream label folder for an appropriate label file with the same base filename as the master disc. Appropriate label files have these file extensions:

- BTW
- PDF
- PCL
- PRN
- FDF
- JPG

If Production Server locates a matched label file, it is used as the label for the recorded copies. Production Sever uses this order to determine what label to print on the discs:

Volume ID – The base label name matches the Volume ID.

UPC/EAN – Label matches the UPC/EAN of the disc.

Job ID – The base label name uses the JOB ID.

Important: If you use the Job ID method, it is very important that you place the sequence of the discs in the supply bin so the master disc and the label match properly. The master disc at the top of the starting bin uses the Line1 - 1 btw label.

Merge Files – If you are using merge files, the merge file (.TXT) must be named with the same name as the label file. The merge file must be stored in the same Job Streaming folder.

Note: If the merge files contain field names you will need to add the DWORD value "Job Stream Merge Files Have Field Names" to the registry in the:

"HKEY_LOCAL_MACHINE\SYSTEM\CurrentControlSet\Services\Rimage_eps\Settings" key and set it to 1.

This can be done using this Powershell command (if running it as an administrator):

Set-ItemProperty -Path "HKLM:\SYSTEM\CurrentControlSet\Services\Rimage_eps\Settings" -Name "Job Stream Merge Files Have Field Names" -Value 1

Bulk Read Mode

Bulk Read is another very specific, but very useful, mode for Production Server. It allows you to tell Production Server that all of the discs in the input bin are to be read, but not until orders come through from a client computer instructing the read operation to commence. Each individual order contains the options used to read the respective disc from the input bin.

Bulk Read mode requires a specific setup for the discs to be used and for the server.

- 1. Pause Production Server.
- 2. Place the discs that you would like to read into the input bin on the Rimage System. These are discs that already contain data (not blank discs).
- 3. Select BulkRead.
- 4. Start Production Server.
- 5. Using a client software program, send read orders to the specific Production Server.

Note: QuickDisc does not support reading discs on the server's system so it is not useful for this purpose.

Scenario

You would like to read 5 discs. Since this takes some time you want this to all be done automatically.

- 1. From Rimage Systems list, right click on the system where you will be doing this process and select **Pause** from the right click menu.
- 2. From Rimage Systems list, right click on the system where you will be doing this process and select **Settings** from the right click menu. The Server Settings screen will display.
- 3. On the General tab, select the **BulkRead** mode in the Operating Modes dropdown list.
- 4. Select **OK** to close the screen.
- 5. Places the stack of discs in the bins.
- 6. From Rimage Systems list, right click on the system where you will be doing this process and select **Resume** from the right click menu. The Rimage System will start processing the discs.
- 7. From your client software, submit orders that instruct the server to the read discs. The server only accepts read orders and automatically loads the discs from the input bin, rather than prompting you for each disc in turn.

Note: Remember to turn Bulk Read mode off, by setting the operating mode back to Normal, when you are done to allow orders to run normally on the server.

Automatic Bulk Read Mode

Automatic Bulk Read mode is very similar to Bulk Read mode. The difference is that the discs are read from the input bin without any orders being submitted from client software. This allows you to read one or many discs onto your fixed drive without user intervention between each disc. It allows you to specify that all of the discs in the input bin are to be read as soon as the server is re-enabled.

Auto Bulk Read mode requires a specific setup for the discs to be used and for the server.

- 1. Pause Production Server.
- 2. Place the discs that you would like to read into the input bin on the Rimage System. These are discs that already contain data (not blank discs).
- 3. Select AutoBulkRead.
- 4. Start Production Server.

Scenario

You would like to read 5 discs. Since this takes some time, you want this to be done automatically and you do not have client software that will start the operation.

- 1. From Rimage Systems list, right click on the system where you will be doing this process and select **Pause** from the right click menu.
- 2. From Rimage Systems list, right click on the system where you will be doing this process and select **Settings** from the right click menu. The Server Settings screen will display.
- 3. On the General tab, select the AutoBulkRead mode in the Operating Modes dropdown list.
- 4. Select **OK** to close the screen.
- 5. Places the stack of discs in the bins.
- 6. From Rimage Systems list, right click on the system where you will be doing this process and select **Resume** from the right click menu. The Rimage System will start processing the discs.

Note: Remember to turn Automatic Bulk Read mode off, by setting the operating mode to Normal, when you are done to allow orders to run normally on the server.

Automatic Bulk Read Options

Automatic Bulk Read mode has additional parameters that you can set that give you more control over the process. These parameters must be set before starting the process. These parameters are located on the Server Settings/Reading tab.

Base Folder for Images

This option specifies a folder where the disc images are stored as they are read from the disc. The image for each disc read is stored in a sub-folder under the one specified here.

Use Barcode as Image Folder Name

This parameter instructs Production Server to use the barcode reader on the Rimage System to create folder names for the disc images. The system must be equipped with a barcode reader and the discs have readable barcodes,

If this parameter is enabled and the autoloader has a barcode reader and the barcode on the disc is readable, then the image folder is named using the barcode value. When this option is disabled, and the **Use Volume ID** setting is also disabled, folder names use the Order ID (e.g., Line 1 - 1).

Use Volume ID (or UPC/EAN) as Image Folder Name

This parameter, when enabled, instructs Production Server to use the Volume ID (sometimes called Disc Title or Disc Label) from the disc to create the folder name for each disc. When this option is enabled and the disc does not contain a Volume ID, but does have a UPC/EAN code, the server uses that code for the folder name instead. When this option is disabled, and the **Use Barcode as Image Folder Name** setting is also disabled, folder names use the Order ID (e.g., Line 1 - 1).

Image Type for Audio Tracks

This parameter tells Production Server the type of audio format to use for the image files created from audio discs that are read. The following types are supported:

- PCM (raw audio format)
- Wav (Wave file)
- DDP (whole disc image format)

Use ISRC as Filename for Audio Tracks

This parameter instructs Production Server to use the ISRC to create a file type and name for audio files that are read from the discs. For this option to work, the audio files must contain a valid ISRC value for each track in the sub-channel. A file name similar to "Track1.img" (for PCM) or "Track1.wav" (for WAV) is created for each track.

Put Failures in Reject Bin

This parameter, when enabled, instructs Production Server to place any disc that has an error into the reject bin. When you use this option you'll be able to quickly discern which discs, if any, had errors during the read process. This option only works on Rimage Systems that have a specified reject bin.

Create 'Full Disc' Image Files

This parameter, when enabled, instructs Production Server to create full disc image (.RMG) files which can be used to make exact copies of the original discs. For example, this is a useful feature for creating a library of disc images on your fixed drive that can be used to create projects of discs at a later time using QuickDisc's "Image to Disc" project type.

Extract ISO-9660 Images to Folders and Files

This parameter instructs Production Server to read the entire file system of a UDF or ISO-9660 formatted disc into a folder recreating the entire folder tree of the original disc.

Note: You can run Auto Bulk Read jobs from QuickDiscs "Advanced" menu and it will step you through each part of the process.

Restore Spanned Set Mode

Restore Spanned Set mode is very similar to Automatic Bulk Read. The difference is that the discs being read are from a Rimage spanned set of discs. You can also restore the spanned set using Rimage's SpanRestore application that is on each of the discs, but this process allows you to restore the entire set without having to be around to put discs into the computer one at a time.

Restore Spanned Set mode requires a specific setup for the discs to be used and for the server.

- 1. Pause Production Server.
- 2. Place the discs that you would like to read into the input bin on the Rimage System. These are discs that already contain data (not blank discs) and they are a complete spanned set of discs.
- 3. Select RestoreSpannedSet.
- 4. Start Production Server.

Scenario

You would like to restore a 5 discs spanned set. Since this takes some time, you want this to be done automatically and you do not have client software that will start the operation.

- 1. From Rimage Systems list, right click on the system where you will be doing this process and select **Pause** from the right click menu.
- 2. From Rimage Systems list, right click on the system where you will be doing this process and select **Settings** from the right click menu. The Server Settings screen will display.
- 3. On the General tab, select the **RestoreSpannedSet** mode in the Operating Modes dropdown list.
- 4. Select **OK** to close the screen.
- 5. Places the stack of discs in the bins.
- 6. From Rimage Systems list, right click on the system where you will be doing this process and select **Resume** from the right click menu. The Rimage System will start processing the discs.

Note: Remember to turn Restore Spanned Set mode off, by setting the operating mode back to Normal, when you are done to allow orders to run normally on the server.

Restore Spanned Set Options

Restore Spanned Set allows you to set a folder to use as the base for the reading process. The folder must be set before starting the process. The folder is located on the Server Settings/Reading tab.

Base Folder for Images

This option specifies a folder where the disc images are stored as they are read from the disc. The image for each disc read is stored in a sub-folder under the one specified here.

Note: You can run Restore Spanned Set jobs from QuickDiscs "Advanced" menu and it will step you through each part of the process.

How Do I?

How Do I Pause A System?

When you pause a Rimage System you are really pausing the Production Server on that system. To do this:

- 1. Highlight the system in the Rimage Systems view (typically on the left of the main screen).
- 2. Right click.
- 3. Select Pause from the drop down menu.

How Do I Start A System?

When you start a Rimage System you are really starting any of the component servers that system may be using including (Production Server, Imaging Server, and NetPub/Watch Server). To do this:

- 1. Highlight the system in the Rimage Systems view (typically on the left of the main screen).
- 2. Right click.
- 3. Select **Resume** from the drop down menu.

Any of the servers that need are offline will be started back up.

How Do I Pause An Imaging Server?

You typically will not need to pause an Imaging Server on a Rimage System, but if you do use the following steps:

- 1. Select Rimage Server Details from the main menu (top right of the main screen).
- 2. Find the Rimage System with the Imaging Server you would like to pause.
- 3. Right click on the Imaging Server name.
- 4. Select **Pause** from the drop down menu.

How Do I Start An Imaging Server?

- 1. Select **Rimage Server Details** from the main menu (top right of the main screen).
- 2. Find the Rimage System with the Imaging Server you would like to pause.
- 3. Right click on the Imaging Server name.
- 4. Select **Resume** from the drop down menu.

How Do I Pause a NetPub/Watch Server?

In the rare event of needing to pause the NetPub/Watch Server on a Rimage System, use the following steps:

- 1. Select **Rimage Server Details** from the main menu (top right of the main screen).
- 2. Find the Rimage System with the Imaging Server you would like to pause.
- 3. Right click on the NetPub/Watch Server name.
- 4. Select **Pause** from the drop down menu.

How Do I Start A NetPub/Watch Server?

1. Select **Rimage Server Details** from the main menu (top right of the main screen).

- 2. Find the Rimage System with the Imaging Server you would like to pause.
- 3. Right click on the NetPub/Watch Server name.
- 4. Select **Resume** from the drop down menu.

How Do I Cancel A Job?

The easiest way to cancel a pending or in process job is to:

- 1. Locate and select it in the Job window.
- 2. Right click on the job in the window.
- 3. Select **Cancel Job** from the drop down menu.

When you cancel a job you really are just telling the servers to stop working on it. This may take a few minutes if the job is currently in the imaging or recording phase.

How Do I Clear All Of The Jobs That Are Done Out Of The List?

To clear all of the completed jobs from the Jobs window list:

- 1. Right click anywhere in the Jobs window.
- 2. Select **Remove Completed Jobs** from the drop down menu.

How Do I Change Bin Settings?

To change the media types in the Bin Settings:

- 1. Right click anywhere in the Media window.
- 2. Select **Configure Bins** from the drop down menu.

How Do I View A Log File?

To view one of the Rimage System's log files:

- 1. Select **Display Logs Viewer** from the main menu (top right of the main screen) or the pop up tray menu on the RSM tray icon.
- 2. Click on the Logs button in the upper left corner.
- 3. Select the log file that you want from the list.

How Do I Have RSM Start When I Log Into Windows (Always Running)?

To have RSM run every time you log into Windows:

- 1. Select **Rimage System Manager Preferences** from the pop up tray menu on the RSM tray icon.
- 2. Click on the General tab on the left.
- 3. Enable the option that says: Run Rimage System Manager when Windows starts.

How Do I Update Firmware For A Recorder, Printer, Or Autoloader?

Rimage, from time to time, makes available updates for hardware firmware of the various components of the system. To upload firmware to a component:

- 1. Highlight the system, that you want to update, in the **Rimage Systems** window.
- 2. Select the System tab to show the system for the selected Rimage System.
- 3. Right click on the **component** you want to update.
- 4. Select **Update Firmware** from the drop down menu.
- 5. Follow the instructions to select the firmware file that was provided to you.

6. Select the **Update** button to start the process.

Updating firmware may take a few minutes, but you will be advised when the process finished. Note that all devices on a Rimage System, of a particular type are updated simultaneously. Specifically, if you have more than one recorder of the same type they will all be updated at the same time.

How Do I Enable a Recorder, Printer or Autoloader That's Been Disabled?

When one of the Rimage components is taken off line by a server or user you can re enable it in the System window.

- 1. Highlight the system, that you want to update, in the **Rimage Systems** window.
- 2. Select the **System** tab to show the system for the selected Rimage System.
- 3. Right click on the **component** you want to enable.
- 4. Select Enable from the drop down menu.

How Do I Respond To An Alert?

The easiest way to respond to an alert it just to click on the balloon message that appears on the system tray when the alert happens. That will cause the Alerts Viewer to display so you can read and reply to the alert. An alert may require some action, like refilling media supplies, or it may just be a warning that something happened.

You can also pop up the Alerts Viewer from the tray menu on the RSM tray icon.

How Do I Display A Session Log For A Rimage Server?

The Rimage Production and Imaging Servers keep a running session log of operations that have happened since the server was started. To display a session log:

- 1. Select **Rimage Server Details** from the main menu (top right of the main screen).
- 2. Find the Rimage System with the Production or Imaging Server you would like to view.
- 3. Right click on the Production or Imaging Server name.
- 4. Select **Server Info** from the drop down menu.

Note: There is not a session log for the NetPub/Watch Server, but you can see more information about the server setup in the Server Info screen.

How Do I Get RSM To Stop Displaying Popup Messages On The Tray?

You can set various options in the preferences to control how alerts are displayed:

- 1. Select **Rimage System Manager Preferences** from the pop up tray menu on the RSM tray icon.
- 2. Click on the Alerts tab on the left.
- 3. Enable or disable options that suit your needs.

How Do I Get Rid of the Notification Sounds?

On Windows 7 and 8 you can:

- 1. Start the **Control Panel**.
- 2. Open the **Sounds** settings.
- 3. Turn off the sound setting for **Notifications**.

On Windows 10 you have more choices.

- 1. Right click on the **task bar** (typically on the bottom of the screen).
- 2. Select **Properties** from the menu.
- 3. Select the **Customize...** button next to the label "Notification area:". The following screen will be displayed. You may have to scroll down on the screen.

← Settings				- 0	×
ද්රී SYSTEM			Find a setting		P
Display	HP AiO Printer Remote	On On			
Notifications & actions	On: Banners, Sounds				
Apps & features	Java Update Checker On: Banners, Sounds	On On			
Multitasking		-			
Tablet mode	Microsoft Visual Studio 2010 On: Banners, Sounds	On On			
Power & sleep	Outlook 2016	On On			
Storage	On: Banners, Sounds				
Offline maps	Photos On: Banners, Sounds	On On			
Default apps					
About	Rimage System Manager On: Banners	On			
	Visual Studio 2012 On: Banners, Sounds	On On			
	Windows Feedback On: Banners, Sounds	On On			

- 4. Find the Rimage System Manager **icon** on the screen.
- 5. Click on the Rimage System Manager icon to open the settings.
- 6. Turn off "Play a sound when a notification arrives". Note: This will only turn off the sound for the Rimage System Manager notifications. Other notifications will play sounds depending on their settings.

How Do I Make the Rimage System Manger Icon Stay on the Screen?

- 1. Right click on the **task bar** (typically on the bottom of the screen).
- 2. Select **Properties** from the menu.
- 3. Select the **Customize...** button next to the label "Notification area:". The following screen will be displayed.

← Settings	- • • × Find a setting Quick actions Choose your quick actions Image: Choose your quick action Image: C			
ई्रेंडे SYSTEM		Find a setting		ρ
Display	Ouick actions			^
Notifications & actions	Choose your quick actions			
Apps & features				
Multitasking				
Tablet mode	Select which icons appear on the taskbar			
Power & sleep	Turn system icons on or off			
Storage	Notifications			
Offline maps	Show me tips about Windows			
Default apps	On On			
	Show app notifications			
About	On On			
	Show notifications on the lock screen			
	On On			
	Show alarms, reminders, and incoming VoIP calls on the lock screen			
	On On			
	Hide notifications while presenting			
	Off Off			~

4. Click on the link that says, "Select which icons appear on the taskbar"

~	Settings		-	×
ૼૢૼૺ૱	SELECT WHICH ICONS APPEAR ON THE TASKBA	AR		
3	AutoDetector Ulead AutoDetector	Out out		Í
	genie2_tray.exe NETGEAR genie - Internet Connected	Off Off		
	Directory Opus Directory Opus	• Off		
R	vshost32.exe Rimage System Manager	On On		
	Task Manager Task Manager	Off Off		
12	Rimage System Manager Rimage System Manager	On On		
12	Rimage System Manager Rimage	On On		
٩	EzUpdt.exe EZ Update	Off Off		
12	vshost32.exe	Off Off		
9	Rimage QuickDisc Double click icon to show QuickDisc	Off Off		
	Rimage System Manager Rimage	Off Off		

5. Find the Rimage System Manager icon in the list.

6. Turn on the option to have it always be on the screen. Note: When the RSM icon is showing you can quickly see if there are any issues by viewing the icons green, yellow, or red dot.

How Do I Ignore Some Warning Conditions I Don't Care About?

When there are conditions on any of the connected Rimage Systems that need attention, a message will show up in the Messages window. You can control the types of messages that show up in the preferences:

- 1. Select **Rimage System Manager Preferences** from the pop up tray menu on the RSM tray icon.
- 2. Click on the Messages tab on the left.
- 3. Enable or disable options that suit your needs.

How Do I Find Rimage Instructional Videos?

There are many Rimage instructional videos on YouTube:

Search For Rimage Videos On YouTube

You can also find more instructional articles and videos on the Rimage website:

Rimage Learn Website